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ABOUT LEE & MAN PAPER

B3 A 3 3 AR

Jiangsu Lee & Man

PR 35

(Changshu, & %)

Chongging Lee & Man

EEFEX
(Yongchuan, 7 JI|)

A Jiangxi Lee & Man
TEEY
(Jiujiang, 71.5T)
Guangdong Lee & Man
EREX
(Hongmei, 3t #§) .
Dongguan Lee & Man
W RTE T
(Huangyong, % 5%)
PRODUCTS Em
Kraft Linerboard H-IE A
y e & M Test Linerboard BE S A
ietham Lee an s g
R Coated Duplex Board 2B R
(Hau Giang, /5 5T) White Top Linerboard B T 41 4R
'r High Strength Corrugating Medium = 58 FLA%S 5 4%
Pulp 5
Tissue Paper B
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Guangdong Lee & Man .
Jiangsu Lee & Man
EREX 2

LRRIE X

capacity: p?per and 110,000 tons Annual production  1.12 million tons of
of tissue paper capacity: aper
2308 MAAT K2 11 & WA £ y: ?1%%%@%&
& _

Annual production  2.30 million tons of

—
r’"’””t;

@;;L % ik PR

Dongguan Lee & Man flangm Lee & Man
REEX STAE

Annual production 720,000 tons of
Annual production 590,000 tons of capacity: p?g.er and 110,000 tons
capacity: aper . Of USSUE paper
il o i 4 FERE - 7211 B

/h=

HER

%‘%n%q;c“g Lee & Man Vietnam Lee & Man

MR E X

capacity: 180,000 tons of pulp and Annual production 400,000 tons of
465,000 tons of tissue paper capacity- i

FER - Q0B WAL - 187 MBS EEL 20 2 1A 4
K 46.5 & WA 87 A& 4K =

Annual production 900,000 tons of paper,
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AR EH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive directors

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond sss Jp (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Man Bun mH sp (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li King Wai Ross

Non-executive director

Professor Poon Chung Kwong Gas Jp

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony
Mr. Peter A. Davies
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chau Shing Yim David (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony
Mr. Peter A. Davies

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chau Shing Yim David (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony
Mr. Peter A. Davies

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond sss jp (Chairman)
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David

Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony

Mr. Peter A. Davies

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond sss jp
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

DNEEH (&)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

5th Floor, Liven House
61-63 King Yip Street
Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong and Macau:

Hang Seng Bank

Standard Chartered Bank
Citibank, N.A.

HSBC

DBS

Bank of China (Hong Kong)

In the PRC:

China Construction Bank
Bank of China
Agricultural Bank of China

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
3rd Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.leemanpaper.com
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
3rd Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBME

Year ended
31 December
HE
12A31BLLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THT
RESULTS |
Revenue WA 16,970,365 17,099,134 17,615,641 18,341,677
Profit before tax BIAIRF 2,192,471 2,208,930 2,750,162 3,354,017
Income tax expense MNEBRTH (244.,268) (304,536) (418,487) (491,274)
Profit for the year FERH 1,948,203 1,904,394 2,331,675 2,862,743
At 31 December
W12A318

2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET THT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZEREE
Total assets BEE 31,194,706 34,736,820 35,599,063 34,995,978
Total liabilities mEE (14,848,220)  (17,259,836)  (18,362,876)  (18,173,013)
Net assets EEFE 16,346,486 17,476,984 17,236,187 16,822,965

2017
HK$'000
TR

25,836,884

6,323,175
(1,282,883)

5,040,292

2017
HK$'000
TER

43,289,793
(21,373,675)

21,916,118
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EEHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded total
revenue of HK$25.84 billion. Its annual net profit increased
significantly by 76% to HK$5.04 billion as compared with last year,
while its net profit per tonne was HK$913.

The Chinese government’s efforts to eliminate obsolete production
facilities while embarking on environmentally-friendly policies has
gradually reduced overcapacity in the industry. The recovery of
demand has also notably improved the demand and supply
equilibrium within the industry. The price of paper has increased as a
result of the surge in energy, raw materials and transportation costs.
The overall increase in sales revenue as well as the value-added tax
refund policy enabled the satisfactory growth in the Group’s profit

margin.

At present, the total annual production volume of the Group’s tissue
paper business is 685,000 tonnes, which includes ten tissue paper
manufacturing machines with a total annual production volume of
465,000 tonnes in Chongging Industrial Park, the two tissue paper
manufacturing machines with a total annual production volume of
110,000 tonnes in Jiangxi Industrial Park and the two tissue paper
manufacturing machines with a total annual production volume of
110,000 tonnes located in Dongguan Hongmei Industrial Park,
Guangdong. The Group is able to further reduce the production cost
of tissue paper through greater economies of scale, leveraging the
increase in production volume and by utilising its pulp production
facilities in Chongqing. Another two production lines with a
combined annual production capacity of 110,000 tonnes located in
the Chongging Industrial Park are to commence production within
this year. After all of the production lines ramp up operation, the
Group's annual production capacity for tissue paper would reach
795,000 tonnes. The tissue paper business is therefore expected to
contribute considerable profit to the Group as it becomes another

new growth driver in the future.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEJ%:‘FEH: (IIE)

Apart from the tissue paper business, the Group has also expanded
into the overseas packaging paper markets and has invested in the
construction of overseas paper factories to keep pace with the
expansion of markets in Southeast Asia. Notable here is that the
paper manufacturing machine project in Hau Giang, Vietnam, with
an annual production capacity of 400,000 tonnes has begun
operation. Since the overseas packaging paper market possesses
enormous potential, the Group is considering directing more
resources to this sector. The PM21 paper manufacturing machine
with an annual production volume of 400,000 tonnes at the Jiangxi
plant has also begun operation. The annual production capacity of
the Group’s packaging paper operation now exceeds 6 million
tonnes.

In order to address overcapacity and environmental issues in the
paper industry, obsolete production facilities have steadily been
eliminated in China as approval standards for new production
capacities have become more stringent in recent years. Local
government authorities intend to impose stricter environmental
monitoring policies and requirements on environmental protection,
which will lead to the shutdown of even more obsolete production
facilities that fail to meet environmental protection standards. Despite
the slowdown in economic growth in China, local demand for
packaging paper is expected to grow steadily in the long run. In
addition, the rapid development of e-commerce and online shopping
has led to fundamental changes in consumption and logistics models,
benefitting the packaging paper industry which is currently
undergoing consolidation. Looking ahead, overall paper consumption
still possesses considerable room for growth, thus the Group is
optimistic about the outlook of both the packaging paper segment
and the paper industry as a whole.

Adhering to its long-held prudent strategies and with debts
maintained at a reasonable level, the Group will monitor the pace of
economic development in China and across Southeast Asia, while it
continues to bolster the production capacity of packaging and tissue
paper, as well as strengthen its presence in Vietnam. The
management will also proceed with efforts to enhance production
efficiency, strictly control costs and strengthen capital operation in
order to maintain the Group’s competitiveness in the paper industry.
Furthermore, the experienced and capable management team will
continue to lead the development of the Group’s businesses and
strive its utmost to raise profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DA

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenue and net profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$25.84 billion and
HK$5.04 billion respectively, while its net profit per tonne was
HK$913.

The earnings per share for the year was HK111.47 cents when
compared with HK62.64 cents for the year ended 31 December
2016.

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES

The Group's distribution and selling expenses was HK$435 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to HK$252 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016. It represented about 1.7% of
the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 and was
increased as compared to about 1.4% for the year ended 31
December 2016. More customers required delivery of the finished

goods by the Group during the year.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s general and administrative expenses was HK$1,292
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to
HK$875 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. It represented
about 5.0% of the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017
and was increased as compared to that of 4.8% for the year ended
31 December 2016 as a result of the expansion of the Group during

the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENRE D (&)

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's total finance costs (including the amounts capitalised)
was HK$298 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
compared to HK$346 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in average interest rate
on bank borrowings during the year.

INVENTORIES, DEBTORS" AND CREDITORS'
TURNOVER

The inventory turnover of the Group’s raw materials and finished
products were 78 days and 18 days, respectively, for the year ended
31 December 2017 as compared to 85 days and 3 days, respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group's debtors’ turnover days were 44 days for the year ended
31 December 2017 as compared to 42 days for the year ended 31
December 2016. This is in line with the credit terms of 45 days to 90

days granted by the Group to its customers.

The Group's creditors’ turnover days were 68 days for the year ended
31 December 2017 as compared to 80 days for the year ended 31
December 2016. This is in line with the credit terms granted by the

Group's suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENRE D (&)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The total shareholders’ fund of the Group as at 31 December 2017
was HK$21,916 million (2016: HK$16,823 million). As at 31
December 2017, the Group had current assets of HK$14,063 million
(2016: HK$9,189 million) and current liabilities of HK$11,040 million
(2016: HK$7,960 million). The current ratio was 1.27 as at 31
December 2017 as compared to 1.15 at 31 December 2016.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$15,078 million
(2016: HK$13,547 million). These bank loans were secured by
corporate guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries of the
Company. As at 31 December 2017, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash of HK$2,249 million (2016: HK$1,274 million).
The Group's net debt-to-equity ratio (total borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents over shareholders’ equity) decreased from 0.73
as at 31 December 2016 to 0.59 as at 31 December 2017. Capital
expenditure was comparable to last year but there was an increase in
translation reserve as a result of Renminbi appreciation during the

year.

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements.

The Group's transactions and the monetary assets are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars
or Euro. The Group has not experienced any material difficulties or
effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in
currency exchange rates during the year ended 31 December 2017.
The Group has used currency structured instruments, foreign
currency borrowings or other means to hedge its foreign currency

exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENBE DT (&)

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a workforce of more than
7,500 people. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive
level and are reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant
labour market and economic situation. The Group also provides
internal training to staff and provides bonuses based upon staff

performance and profits of the Group.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour disputes nor
has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff. The Group maintains a good relationship with its

employees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EhRE

TRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. The Board of the Company believes that
sound and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential
for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and maximising
shareholders’ interests. During the year under review, the Company
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
"Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The objectives of the management structures within the Group,
headed by the Board and led by the Chairman, are to deliver
sustainable value to Shareholders.

The Chairman provides leadership to and oversees the effective
functioning of the Board. With support of the Chief Executive Officer
and the Company Secretary, the Chairman approves Board meeting
agenda, and ensures Directors have proper briefing, and timely
receive adequate and reliable information, on all Board matters.

The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Chief Executive
Officer, and different persons hold the separate offices. Chief
Executive Officer heads the management and focuses on the day-
today operations of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management, the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017, the accounting principles and practices adopted and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions in 2004. All the members of the
Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017. The
Model Code also applies to other specified senior management of
the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERRE (F)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition and Role

The Board comprises:

Executive directors:

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond s8s jp (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Man Bun mH Jp

Mr. Li King Wai Ross

Non-executive director:

Professor Poon Chung Kwong Gas sp

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony

Mr. Peter A. Davies

Mr. Chau Shing Yim David

During the year, the Board comprises of three executive directors (one
of whom is the Chairman), one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors. In addition, three of the
independent non-executive directors possess appropriate legal,
professional accounting qualifications and financial management

expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic
development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s business

operations.

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive director is independent in character and
judgment and that they all meet the specific independence criteria as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation or
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The independent non-executive directors are explicitly

identified in all of the Company’s corporate communications.
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The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors.
Notice of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all
regular board meetings and the directors can include matters for
discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying
board papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full
to all directors within reasonable time before the meeting. Draft
minutes of all board meetings are circulated to directors for comment

within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all
directors have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information on a timely manner, which
enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed
before it.

During the year, full board meetings were held and the individual
attendance of each director is set out below:

FREALEES  EE2ABEHLE
Tttux% ERRZEE FeBRANRD

R
REBEZTHRABETEES %
RN IR EREIE ©

T EFABRER
BEEHERN  —ExERRERABY
XU RERRA 2 ARERMANEETEE
% BENSREBTERA BN
REESEH - FTHER -

ExelhEFZ Rz eRLEmEEE
BIREZWERTE  MAEERVERED
Bl E =& XXM RAARE F FoE s 12
RWER  FEREGURNARRBEMNEL
BIRERHE -

FRN CHREZREZSSE  SEEY
FIERFHIIIMT -

Number of meetings

attended/Total
Name of director EEpE HEER SREKH
Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond sss EXERELwenes cFHt 5/5
Mr. Lee Man Bun mH Jp FXWE L pmns «Fmt 5/5
Mr. Li King Wai Ross PR E 5/5
Professor Poon Chung Kwong Gas J ERHABBE 22 HEE ATt 5/5
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony TRUELE 5/5
Mr. Peter A. Davies Peter A. Daviesst 4 5/5
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David IEE e 5/5
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BUZEEEHNEARIZERESLE
A 2ERBMARER ZABEIN - K
BRZEFHARA 2 EBNEFTEE
B2 WD MBRN LA KA
MEERE NZBEERER -

Each appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

EEMREREERLETHAANS MB L
AR/ ARBELER - TRHRIIEE
ER017ERBEVEELTRARAESRTZ
AR BERBECHEEXEREZ
S BT o

The directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the
Company. The participation by individual directors in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate emphasis on
the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
2017 is recorded in the table below.

Attending external

seminars/
Reading regulatory programmes
updates 88
MEEERTE ShRBBEY
Name of director EEpg BHER mHE B
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond sgs s EBiE T agnes cFet
Mr. Lee Man Bun wmHJp TR L2882 AFHL
Mr. Li King Wai Ross FERE
Non-executive director kBTES
Professor Poon Chung Kwong 685 Jp BRIBR 24028 AFM1 v v
Independent non-executive directors BIUFHITESE
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony TRELE
Mr. Peter A. Davies Peter A. Davies5t 4
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David BERK &
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2003 and its current

members include:

Mr. Chau Shing Yim David (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony
Mr. Peter A. Davies

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
legal, business and accounting on the Audit Committee. The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were approved and adopted on 28 March 2012 to
conform to the provisions of the Code and the Listing Rules, a copy
of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group's financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of
internal controls, risk management and the effectiveness and
objectively of the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides
an important link between the Board and the Company’s auditors in
matters coming within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps
under review the independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a

review of the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

EREES

EIZEBER2003F K7
o

BRKEE

FERK T E(EE)
TR A
Peter A. Daviesst 4

E=eRRSERLZEENEHARBER
BRHKR  BERZEQETRE/EIER
B AERETEX -BERZREEILRE
ERERE EMBRAEI2MEZRE - B
HESTAGRX R ETRA - HllEZEE
SRRIBEZBESECDN20129F3A
28 AR E R IR - BESBEEXE TH

EZZEBe TR MRS ANEE 2/
Ea&ﬁ&é%ﬂxﬁz/ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁﬂ W B ES
i RREEMBZBREZARMERK
BE ° %*Z%%iéjﬁE%%@&Qﬂff?%lﬁﬂi
2Bz EER/R  EEREHZENFER
ENEEY Gl AV E Y YT C

ERZBSCBHEEERN AN REMRMN
Z@%ﬂ?ﬂ‘l&r ) - 36 2 h AR EE 1 N B
BEREFFHETH R HTEEEHE

E2017F12A831BIEFEMNETER -

FA- - AER=ZRERZESEE
BB RFHIIT

> {5l

Number of attendance

Name of member BMEHE R
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David BER LA 3/3
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony TREREE 3/3
Mr. Peter A. Davies Peter A. DaviessL & 3/3
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and the

current members include:

Mr. Chau Shing Yim David (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony
Mr. Peter A. Davies

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under
paragraph B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code and advises and makes
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s overall policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee ensures that no director or any of his
associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee were approved and
adopted on 28 March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the
Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to determine the
policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management. One
Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year and all
members have attended in the meeting.

FMEES

HEZ B S R2005F /K7
17

HEKE R

FEK T E(EE)
TR A
Peter A. Daviesst 4

FENZE BB HANST AR ZB.1.2(c)ii) -
MEEFERASEEERaREREZT
Bl - ZEEBHUR R EBIELERE - FIES
CHRPEESTAHAMBBEAZHEET
HARGZHM - RFETFAIEX - HHE
SerBESHEDN2012F3828HEH
EREY  WEHERARFTRENA -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012 and

the current members include:

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond sBs Jp (Chairman)
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David

Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony

Mr. Peter A. Davies

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessing the independence of the

independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company. One Nomination Committee meeting was held

during the year and all members have attended in the meeting.

Board diversity

During the year, the Company continued to monitor the board
composition with regard to its diversity policy which requires board
appointments to be made based on merit and candidates to be
considered against an objective criteria, including diversity. In order
to maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills,
experience and background on the Board, the Nomination
Committee developed measurable objectives to implement this policy
and monitored progress towards achieving these objectives during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each director, against the
Company'’s business model and specific needs.
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The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board's
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to
maintain high standards of corporate governance. The Company will
continue to monitor and develop new objectives for implementing
and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it
considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the

Company and the market from time to time.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Li King Wai Ross
and Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony, shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of
the directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee payable to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries is set out below:

ARBVRE » ZIEBREAE T RE
HAEER HRAEEGUELERS
KFEEEREMER - ARAIKHEER
EARRRMAZTEHHARBR R £HR
REFERERRIILHER  #EAERA
EFEemZ LK

REBABSEMN  FEBEERTIRR
EEBREERRABFAG LHESE
WA ERLRAE RS -

REZRECEBRENZTEENARR]E
ERRBEFAG LBEREEZESE -

SIS A% BB

AEIE2017F 12831 B IEEE » ®ARQ
AILEHMEARTERENERNIFEER
BRARRINEZ AN EN N E B
T

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services EZR 7,826
Non-audit services (included tax matters, FEEERE(BEREEE -

review and other reporting services) FEH R HE M A RART) 863

8,689
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group's risk management and internal control systems provide a
clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage it risks across
business operations effectively.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which
consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and the Risk
Management Taskforce (i.e. Senior Management). The Board
determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control

systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management
Taskforce identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement
of the Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified
risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and
risk owners are then established and assigned for those risks
considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional
advisor to provide internal audit services, which assist the Board and
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design
and implementation of internal controls are identified and
recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal
control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are
taken.
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Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board at least once a year. The Board
had performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including but not limited
to the Group's ability to cope with its business transformation and
changing external environment; the scope and quality of
management's review on risk management and internal control
systems; result of internal audit work; the extent and frequency of
communication with the Board in relation to result of risk and
internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified
and their related implications; and status of compliance with the
Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group's risk management and

internal control systems are effective.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“"SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the
SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public. The
Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires

equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared
the accounts on the going concern basis. The directors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about
the Group’s performance to shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders,
additional information is also available to shareholders on the website

of the Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the
Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The Chairman and Directors
and external auditors are available to answer questions on the

Company’s businesses at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, procedures for demanding a poll are included
in the circular to shareholders dispatched together with the annual

report.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder

meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the
principal office of the Company, which is presently situated at 5/F.,
Liven House, 61-63 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

There are no provisions under the Company'’s Articles of Association
or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings other than a proposal
of a person for election as director. Shareholders may follow the
procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.
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58 8

BRI -HERE

FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2017

With growing concerns from the various walks of life on how
enterprises have shouldered their social responsibilities, Lee & Man
Paper Manufacturing Limited (“Lee & Man”, the “Group” or "We")
has prepared this Environmental, Social and Governance Report (this
“Report”) in accordance with the requirements of Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Main
Board Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in order that stakeholders can better understand
the policies and measures we have adopted and our performance in
respect of environmental protection, social responsibilities and
corporate governance.

Our Board of Directors were responsible for supervising the
environmental, social and governance strategies, policies and
measures adopted by us whilst the management was responsible for
their execution to ensure proper risk management and the
effectiveness of our internal control system in these areas, which
would help to promote our sustainable development.
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RE #HERERKRSE (H)

In order that the contents and disclosures of this Report could meet
the expectations of stakeholders, we have engaged the management
and employees of our various departments to participate in preparing
this Report. We have prepared this Report with the following subject
areas after conducting a review of the Group’s operations, the
related environmental, social and governance issues and an analysis

of the importance of such issues to stakeholders:

REAREATREMEATESRHNE
MAE  SREBFTSMANEEERE
T2EFERE - BEREEEEE K
BRI  HEREANEREREARDT
ZEEEURNENERN  RA/ER
EHIET T AT RREE

Subject Areas Required under Stock Exchange’s Material Environmental, Social and

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Governance Aspects of the Group

Air emissions
Sewage discharges
Wastes

ST B e
EIRBEL
REEY)

Energy consumption
Water consumption
BERFEE
R E A

Timber logging
Noises

MRARIR K

BE

Recruitment, promotion and compensation
Employees’ welfare

Equal opportunities

Other employment practices

BRARE - HERERREECIEE AEEEENRER  HERERER

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
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A1. Emissions o
o
o
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o
o

A2. Use of resources °
o

A2. BRI g
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A3. The environment and natural resources °
o

A3. RENRAREIR .
o
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B1. Employment o
o
o
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RE #HERERRSE (&)

Subject Areas Required under Stock Exchange’s Material Environmental, Social and
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Governance Aspects of the Group

BRXARE  dERERREESIHE FEEEENRE  HERERER

B2. Health and safety e Workplace health and safety
B2. f@REE o IERRLTHER
B3. Development and training e Internal training
e External training
B3. R K&IFI o AMELEHI
o HMEREEFI
B4. Labour standards ¢ Prohibition of child and forced labour
B4. & T %R e MIEETRAFET

B5.
B5.

B6.

Supply chain management

HrEEE IR

Product responsibility

Procurement of raw materials

R R

Product safety
After-sale services
Data Privacy

B6. EmEE s EmTE
o ERIRTE
. ERRE
B7. Anti-corruption e Anti-bribery and anti-money laundering
B7. R&ES o [IIEBRAR RE R
B8. Community investment e Community development

Environmental protection
Support for the under-privileged

B8. tt@mKE o MEmER
o REFRHE
o [EXIE
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

As the Chinese Government has placed high importance on
environmental protection in recent years aiming at sustainable
development along with economic growth, the standards laid
down for emissions have been considerably tightened. Being
well aware that environmental protection is the most important
basis for our development, the Group has adopted a number
of improvement and monitoring measures to ensure
performance of our environmental responsibilities. As part of
the various efforts to make us one of the companies which best
comply environmental protection principles in the world, our
different plants have employed the most efficient technologies
to enable us to satisfy the newest emission standards laid down
by the government as well as internationally applicable
environmental management standards. To ensure effective
implementation of the measures, our management has set up
an environmental team led by the Chief Executive Officer with
members having the relevant expertise. The team has held
internal control meetings regularly to review environmental
issues in the plants, to update themselves with applicable
environmental laws and regulations and to give advice on any
necessary improvements. Going forward, the team will engage
themselves more on environmental protection measures to be
taken in production processes, principally including those
employed to lower water consumption, treat sewage water
and air emissions more efficiently, save energy and monitoring
emissions to ensure continued compliance with high
environmental protection standards.

The Group is committed to satisfying all applicable laws and
regulations on environmental protection, including the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Protection”,
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Air Pollution”, and the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution Due to Solid Wastes”.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find anything
which constituted a breach of relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations.
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Air Emissions

To ensure enough power supply for operating paper-making
machines in our production, the plants of the Group have had
their own thermal power stations operating coal-fired
generators and therefore, there have been gas emissions
including nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides. The Group has
made efforts to reduce emissions at the source by always being
energy-saving and lowering air emissions by cutting coal
consumption. Environmental-friendly circulating fluidised bed
boilers used in our thermal power stations can achieve efficient
combustion of all kinds of coal. As the combustion temperature
in this kind of boilers is lower than that in pulverised coal
boilers, less nitrogen oxides would be generated. Moreover, in
each coal-fired power stations of the Group, the most
advanced air emissions treatment facilities have been used,
including the employment of highly efficient bag filters to
reduce ashes, SCR/SNCR de-nitration systems to eliminate
nitrogen oxides, and limestone-gypsum flue gas desulfurisation
system to curb sulphur dioxide gas, to successfully reduce
smoke and sulphur by more than 99.9% and 90% respectively.
In addition, the plants of the Group have also employed an
even more effective wet desulfurisation facility to further lower
sulphur dioxide emissions to 400 mg/m’®, an emission quantity
much less than the relevant national standard. The Group has
monitored the quality of air emissions emitted on a real-time
basis to ensure outperforming the relevant national standard
by use of online detection equipment.
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Sewage Discharges

As water was consumed in the Group’s paper production
operations, there was sewage discharge. In order to reduce
sewage discharge generated from its production, the Group
has introduced the most effective sewage treatment techniques
employed by the paper-making industry worldwide, specifically
the combined use of physiochemical coagulation-sedimentation
pre-treatment, anaerobic digestion and aerobic digestion
technologies to achieve deep treatment. With the use of
internationally advanced sewage treatment techniques and
facilities, we have successfully maintained stability in the
volume and quality of sewage discharge, with the CODcr level
of major pollutants as well as the levels of NH3-N and SS in full
compliance with the maximum limits on discharges by pulp and
paper making operations under National Standard “GB3344-
2008" (Standard on Discharge of Water Pollutants by the Pulp
and Paper-Making Industry). After multiple treatments, sewage
discharged by the Group’s operations has achieved more than
99.5% of pollutants reduction. Also, the Group has achieved
water re-use by the rate of more than 80% in its production
and water discharge has been less than 10 m*/mt of paper
produced. Our sewage treatment stations have been equipped
with water re-use systems to raise sewage re-use and reduce
water consumption. In addition, there have been automatic
programmable logic controllers and online surveillance systems
in our sewage treatment stations to monitor the discharge of
sewage, thus facilitating the integrated management of
sewage discharge. Also, we have enabled reasonable re-use of
sludge and methane generated in the sewage treatment
process. Water content of the sludge was lowered to around
50% with fully automatic recessed plate filters and then the
dried sludge was burnt at thermal power stations in order to
reduce solid wastes. The methane generated in the anaerobic
treatment systems in the sewage stations was also collected
and used as part of the fuel for the boilers in the power

stations, thus greatly saving the coal required.
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Wastes

No significant hazardous wastes were produced in the Group's
production operations. The wastes generated in our operations
were mainly non-hazardous ones produced in the course of
paper-making, together with a small quantity of wastes due to
routine office work.

The Group has principally reduced or disposed of wastes
generated from its paper-making operations in three ways.
First, as the Group used lots of waste paper as a raw material
in its paper-making operations, a big quantity of paper-making
residue was left behind after extraction of useful fibres for the
paper-making process. As the residue contained different
impurities, the residue was carried to a washing line where
reusable metal wires, aluminium cans and plastics in the residue
were collected and sold to recyclers. Also, the plants of the
Group have had sewage treatment facilities to filter sewage
generated from the paper-making process. The sludge
generated in several hundred metric tons per day in the sewage
treatment station was then burnt in boilers after treatment and
deep drying. The energy generated by burning the waste in a
circulating fluidised bed boilers could be re-used in the paper-
making process and therefore, not only secondary pollution
would be avoided but energy consumption would be saved.
Finally, the residue remaining after recovery of reusable
materials and other wastes unsuitable for burning were
disposed of legally by qualified contractors as landfill.

Use of Resources

As a paper-making enterprise, the Group inevitably required a
large amount of water and energy in its daily operations.

The Group has actively adopted measures in each aspect of its
production processes to curb energy consumption in its
operations. For example, the Group has reduced energy
consumption by substituting high-performance equipment for
older ones and making relevant changes to its electricity
facilities, and has also adopted efficiency-enhancing and
energy-saving technologies such as the full use of frequency
conversion and high voltage compensation devices.
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Meanwhile, the Group has closely monitored energy input and
output as well as energy consumption by production and non-
production operations with an effective mechanism for
measuring, monitoring and analysing energy consumption, and
has also created corresponding posts to manage the use of
energy. The Group has indeed received commendations of the
Government Examination Team for Energy-Saving and
Emissions Reduction for our promotion and implementation of
various measures to save energy, reduce emissions and achieve
environmental protection alongside economic growth.

Energy Consumption

The transportation and production processes in our daily
operations have involved the use of great amounts of energy
for running the relevant machines. Diesel and coal have been
the major energy sources we used. As the various plants of the
Group have had their own coal-fired generators to ensure
availability of sufficient power necessary for the high power
consuming paper-making machines, we have not purchased
electricity power from the national power grid.

The Group has used coal as the fuel for our thermal power
stations for its highest energy content compared with other
kinds of fuel. We have also employed co-generation technology
to turn residual heat from the power generation process into
heat source for use in paper-making, thus considerably raising
the efficiency of energy use and reducing the consumption of
coal.
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In order to achieve energy-saving and reduce emissions, the
Group has made it a requirement that new technologies which
could help lower energy consumption should be used for every
component of the production line as far as possible. Moreover,
the Group has introduced a number of projects which aimed at
lowering energy consumption, such as the gradual substitution
of highly energy-consuming electricity-powered machines for
variable-frequency ones for better energy-saving performance
and thus lower production cost. Moreover, methane and
certain of the solid wastes which were side products in the
sewage treatment process referred in the “Sewage Discharges”
and “Wastes” sections above could be burnt in boilers in the
thermal power stations, therefore saving fuel for the coal
boilers.

The Group has also continued to optimise energy management.
We have raised the efficiency of energy use both in the power
generation process and in the paper-making process and have
therefore successfully lowered the energy consumption per unit
year by year. In the Reporting Period, the overall energy
consumption per metric ton of paper produced by the Group
was less than 0.34 metric ton of standard coal equivalent and
substantially lower than the national average of 0.60 metric
ton of standard coal equivalent.

Water Consumption

As water has been a necessity for our paper-making operations,
water used in our production has accounted for a major part of
the Group’s water consumption. In order to save municipal
water supply (which was considered more valuable because of
its potable water standard), the Group has obtained its water
supply by directly taking water from rivers and then carrying
out purification process to satisfy the industrial water standard.
In doing so, we have helped protect the valuable potable water
resources. As far as water saving was concerned, the Group
has principally adopted the strategy of re-using water in its
production. The amount of natural water required by the
Group has been considerably lowered as a result of our
employment of advanced and very efficient sewage treatment
techniques and the use of a higher percentage of re-used
water in our production process.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The impact of commercial activities on the environment and
natural resources has always been a great concern to the
Group. As a commitment to reduce the logging of natural
timber, we have been using recycled paper as the materials for
paper-making, the primary business of the Group. In addition
to complying with environmental regulations and international
rules on protection for the natural environment, the Group has
also incorporated concepts of environmental friendliness into
our internal management and daily activities. In our striving to
attain environmental sustainability, we have successfully
received ISO 14001 Certification for Environmental

Management.

With the aim of actively promoting environmental protection
and efficient use of resources, we have monitored the potential
effect of our business operations on the environment on an on-
going basis and promoted the green office and the green
production environment in adherence to four principles,
namely, “Reduce”, “Re-use”, “Recycle” and “Replace”, in
order to minimise the impact of our operations on the

environment.

Timber Logging

As tree fibre is a necessary raw material for paper-making, the
use of pulp as a raw material for paper-making indirectly leads
to demand for timber logging. With the use of advanced
production machinery, we have been able to use waste paper
as a raw material in paper-making in big amounts. It has been
a long-term objective of the Group to use more waste paper
and less virgin pulp. The Group has been committed to raising
the percentage of use of waste paper as raw material and
becoming one of the containerboard manufacturers with the

highest recycling rate in the world.

Among the paper produced by the Group, 98% were made
from recovered paper and only 2% from timber virgin pulp.
This was exactly an example of our utmost efforts to protect
forests and minimise the impact of our operations on the

environment.
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Noises

As our plants have been equipped with large paper-making
machinery and coal-fired generators, their operation would
cause rather big noises. In view of this, the Group has chosen
to use low noise equipment and products as far as possible in
the course of building the pulp and paper production lines and
the thermal power stations in order that noises could be
lowered at the sources. Moreover, as an effort to lower sound
pollution to the environment, the Group has installed various
sound isolation facilities to contain noises due to running of
machines and has added silencers on noisy equipment such as
blowers and exhaust fans. For the sake of our employees’
health, the Group has built soundproof control rooms at the
pulp and paper-making workshops where workers can work in
a healthy environment without being influenced by the big
noises. Meanwhile, the Group has added more plantation in
the factory area to help dampen propagation of noises apart

from cleaning of the air.

SOCIAL
Employment

It has always been Lee & Man's belief that our employees are
one of the most important assets of the Group and their
productivity has directly contributed to the Group’s success.
Therefore, care for employees has been an important aspect of
our human resources management. We have been dedicated
to improving our personnel policies and workplaces to provide
a good working and living environment to our employees for

their better health, growth and performance.

Recruitment, Promotion and Compensation

The Group has been eager to recruit talents who share the
same values and ideas with us so that we can achieve mutual
growth and a win-win situation. To facilitate attraction of high
quality people, the Group has been closely monitoring the
trends of the labour and economic markets and has made
annual assessments and necessary revisions in order to maintain

competitiveness of our salary levels.
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We have determined the salary of each employee in accordance
with their performance, experience, expertise, job duties and
market salary level. We have also provided other employee
benefits including insurance, medical benefits, stock options as
well as discretionary bonuses depending on the employees’
performance and our business results.

Furthermore, the Group has always attached importance to the
career growth of our employees. As we have offered internal
training programs and promotion opportunities, our employees
could have chances to enhance their working knowledge, skills
and experience and to be transferred to different positions and
job duties. They could widen their horizons and grow together

with the Group in line with our overall strategy.

Employees’ Welfare

We have valued two-way communication with our employees.
We have kept an open mind to listen to and see the merits of
the employees’ opinions. The Group have assessed and
improved the meals, accommodation, amenities and other
services provided to employees from time to time to ensure
availability of a comfortable environment to them. The Group
has also tried to raise the sense of belonging of the employees
and enrich their spare-time life by organising recreational
activities for them and their families. We have set up an
employees’ welfare fund to help them meet emergency needs.
If an employee or his family had a need for financial assistance
due to an emergency, the Group would allocate a benefit to
the employee directly from the fund to help them address the
difficulties.

Equal Opportunities

The Group has been an equal opportunity employer. We have
ensured that our employees received equal treatments in our
daily operations and in every aspect of our human resources
arrangements and would not be subject to discrimination on
ground of ethnicity, nationality, religion, political affiliation, sex,
marital status and physical disability.
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Other Employment Practices

The human resources policies of the Group have been in
compliance with all local labour requirements including those
on recruitment, dismissal, salary and benefits, working hours
and holiday entitlements to protect the lawful rights of our
employees. During the Reporting Period, we did not find
anything which constituted a breach of laws and regulations

on employment and human resources.

Health and Safety

Workplace health and safety

Always attaching importance to the working environment of
our employees, the Group has been committed to providing a
safe and satisfactory workplace for them and has taken
necessary measures to protect their health and safety. The
Group has regularly organised first aid, fire-fighting, evacuation
and fire escape drills to raise the safety awareness of our
employees. Different posters and notices have been posted in
the workshops to remind employees of the importance of
occupational safety. Meanwhile, the Group has also issued
worker’s manuals setting forth policies and practices on
occupational safety for reference by all of our employees. The
Group has also set up a proper accident reporting and
investigation mechanism to more effectively identify accident

and safety risks.

The Group has continued to make investments to improve the
employees’ workplace and has received recognitions for doing
so. Our plants in Hongmei, Jiangsu, Huangyong and Jiangxi
were granted with OHSAS 18001 certification for occupational
health and safety. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not find anything which constituted a breach of occupational

health and safety laws.
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Development and Training

Lee & Man'’s success has been the result of our employees’
efforts. Well aware of the importance of the personal growth
and enhancements of the employees, we have set up a proper
mechanism of providing internal and external training on new
knowledges and skills for employees to help them cope with
the development strategies of the Group.

Internal Training

The internal training programs offered by the Group could
principally be categorised into admission training, production
safety training and fire safety training. Admission training,
which mainly covered introduction to the firm, rules and
procedures, and attendance and salary matters, was aimed at
familiarising new joiners with the Group’s background and
expectations of the Group on employees. Our production
safety training has borrowed the concepts of 7S management
practices which were first adopted in Japan and relevant I1SO
requirements and aimed at improving the quality of the
production and working environment. Fire safety training
emphasised the raising of employees’ awareness of fire safety

and improving their ability to address emergencies.

External Training

Apart from training provided by the Group internally, we also
sponsored employees to receive training offered by third party
institutions. The external training programs were generally
expertise training which focused on provision of most updated
industry information and techniques desirable for raising
productivity and competitiveness. We have also arranged
external training for selected employees to ensure they attained
the relevant knowledge and skills to be competent for the
special job duties which they were responsible for. For
employees who had the potential and ability to join the
management, the Group would arrange comprehensive

management training for them to prepare them for promotion.
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In addition, for the sake of continuous development of the
Group, we have put in place a management trainee program
to develop potential successors to different positions. We have
also selected trainees to attend a two-year diploma course on
paper-making technique offered by the South China University
of Technology in Guangzhou every year with the Group's
sponsorship. After graduation, those trainees would be
assigned job duties at different positions in the Group.

Labour Standards

Prohibition of Child and Forced Labour

The Group has only recruited people who have attained the
legal working age in strict compliance with the local labour
laws and regulations. There have been sufficient and effective
internal controls in our recruitment procedures to avoid the use
of illegal labour. We have recruited our workers in adherence
with the principles of fairness, openness and free will. Our
subsidiaries have entered into legal employment contracts with
employees without using any forced labour service. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not find anything which
constituted a breach of labour laws and regulations.

Supply Chain Management

As we are a production enterprise, supply chain management
has always been a critical aspect in our quality control system.
We have maintained a stringent supplier assessment
mechanism to carry out selection of suppliers according to I1SO
guidelines in order to ensure the suppliers’ compliance with
relevant quality and service requirements as well as laws and

regulations on environmental and social matters.
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Procurement of Raw Materials

To preserve natural resources, the Group has primarily used
waste paper instead of virgin pulp as a raw material in paper-
making. In order to obtain a stable supply of waste paper, the
Group has engaged designated agents to source high quality
waste paper materials worldwide including in the Netherlands,
the United Kingdom, the United States and Canada, also as a
way to benefit from flexibility of choice. Our sourcing agents
collected waste paper materials through various channels
including recyclers, supermarkets, local authorities and retailers
and then shipped the materials to us through our transport
teams. In fact, this has been the most effective and the fastest
way to collect and carry the waste paper materials in

accordance with relevant regulations.

Besides, the Group has been operating more than 50 waste
paper collecting and packing sites in Mainland China and has
also been sponsoring a number of other business partners in
China to source high quality waste paper locally as a way to

develop paper sources as well as to support paper recycling.
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Product Responsibility

Product Safety

Always with customers as our first priority, the Group has been
committed to meeting their requirements with high quality
products and services. We have made our product information
transparent and have made accurate and updated product
information available to customers. As we highly value product
safety, we have obtained IECQ QC 080000 certification for the
hazardous substance process management of our four plants in
Hongmei, Jiangsu, Huangyong and Jiangxi. A proof that our
paper products were free of banned hazardous substances, the
certification could boost customers’ confidence in the products
of the Group. Meanwhile, the various plants of the Group have
also successfully obtained I1SO 9001 certification for their quality
management system. We have also obtained the Forest
Stewardship Council’s Chain of Custody (FSC-COC)
certification, a proof that the Group values its product quality
and the sustainability of forest operations. Moreover, the
Group has established a risk assessment team to assess product
quality and safety risks regularly in order to address issues
promptly for protection of the Group’s and customers’

interests.

After-sale Services

The Group has maintained an after-sale service department to
follow up concerns and opinions of customers so as to provide
customers with fully satisfactory services. In all sales territories
in China, the Group has engaged designated after-sale service
personnel to provide technical support to customers and follow
up their complaints or questions. The Group has also set a time
limit within which customers should receive follow-ups and
responses from our after-sale service personnel as a guarantee
that their concerns can be addressed fast and their

requirements can be satisfied to the greatest extent possible.
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Data Privacy

Well aware of the importance of privacy, the Group has taken
data protection measures necessary for protecting the interests
of all stakeholders. We have ensured that our employees have
access to operating data required for performing their duties
only. We would not allow disclosure of information
unauthorised by the information owner except otherwise

required by law.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find anything
which constituted a breach of relevant laws and regulations on

product or service quality.

Anti-corruption

Anti-bribery and Anti-money Laundering

Lee & Man has always observed laws and regulations on
prevention of commercial crimes in our daily operations, in
adherence to our principles of acting with integrity and
fairness. We have published our code of personal and
professional conduct in the employees’ manuals for their
compliance. In addition to anti-bribery and anti-corruption
policies which have been substantiated in the employees’ rules,
the Group has also put in place a whistleblowing mechanism to
encourage reporting of improper acts by employees and
stakeholders. Meanwhile, the Group has regularly assessed and
reviewed the effectiveness of our internal control system to
ensure that potential corruption risks can be identified and

eliminated.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find anything
which constituted a breach of laws and regulations on anti-

corruption or counter-money laundering.
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Community Investment

Lee & Man Paper has always been committed to shouldering
our social responsibilities. We have made contributions in three
major respects, namely, community development,
environmental protection and support for the under-privileged,
with a commitment to help members of the community in
need and facilitate social advancement by participating in
charitable causes with resources we have won in our

commercial operations.

Community Development

The founders of the Group have spared no effort to support
education causes and have sponsored the building of a number
of education facilities. The Patrick Lee Wan Keung Science and
Engineering Laboratory Building in Hainan University in Hainan
Province donated by Mr. Lee Wan Keung Patrick, the Patrick
Lee Wan Keung Academic Building in Lingnan University, Hong
Kong donated by Mr. Lee Man Bun, and the Lee Keung Study
Hall in Jiaji Secondary School, Qionghai City, Hainan Province
also donated by Mr. Lee Man Bun are among the results of the
zeal of our founders for the facilitation of community

development.

Environmental Protection

As described in the sections on environmental protection
above, the Group has been making great endeavours to keep
possible pollutions and negative impacts of our operations on
the environment to a minimum. The Group has received
recognitions from government authorities, professional bodies
and many others in the community including certifications and
awards for the investments and efforts we have made in
respect of environmental protection. Certifications and
accolades won by the Group have included the following:
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The Group/Specific Plants Certifications/Accolades Obtained

&8 BE Rk RIE

All of our plants in China ISO 9001 Certification for Quality Management
BB NPT A R 1S09001 i & & Il B+

All of our plants in China

BB R AT L

All of our plants in China

HEBAMERE

Hongmei and Huangyong plants

//\Ti&/ﬁ/ﬁ V%

The Group
58

The Group
£H

Hongmei and Huangyong plants

//\Ti&/ﬁ/ﬁ V%

Hongmei plant

HIGHE

Chongging plant

ISO 14001 Certification for Environmental Management
ISO14001 RFE IE B2 E

Forest Stewardship Council’s Chain of Custody (FSC-COC) Certification
AMRERREHEE ERFE(FSC-COC)

GB/T23331-2012 Certification for Energy Management System
GB/T23331-2012 LR EIBEE R R E

FJE/ R AZ

Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partner (Manufacturing)

BRBREEBH (BUEX)

Named an “Environmental-Friendly Enterprise”
RIERERAE

Named a “Cleaner Production Enterprise in Guangdong” and an
“Qutstanding Labour Law Compliant Enterprise in Guangdong”

BEREBREELERERESHATTEAEFLE

Named an “Advanced Energy Conversation Unit”
EfiRE SR BB SR

Named an “Ecological Improvement and Environmental Protection”
BRI S B AR
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Support for the Under-privileged PHEFIE

Lee & Man provided generous support for the victims and also B ERR T IR ERSERE KR
solicited donations through our employees every time an ETEHEHRARODIHRERL - £EBRN
earthquake or other natural disaster occurred and led to serious R EREREEMETER - &
casualties. Donations received were sent to charitable SHEeHABERESAEE SR
organisations for the quick relief of victims and rebuilding of ARREHERERE  Z2FKE - BF
their homes. Disasters which we organised donation functions EEBKERERNLEERIEN)IIT
included the earthquakes that occurred in Wenchuan in JNHE - S8 FEEmE - )| L
Sichuan Province, Yushu in Qinghai Province and Yaan also in BE o

Sichuan Province.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond, aged 47, CPPCC National
Committee, SBS JP, Chairman of the Company is in charge of
corporate planning and investment projects. Dr. Lee has over 24
years of operational experience in paper manufacturing and is
experienced in professional formula of paper making and product
development. Dr. Lee was conferred the Honorary Degree of Doctor
of Laws in 2014 and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Science
from the University of British Columbia in Canada. He is currently
involved in a number of public engagements and has been awarded
honorary citizenship of Dongguan and reputational citizenship of
Changshu. Dr. Lee was awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of
Hong Kong 2002" and received an award for “2003 Hong Kong Ten
Outstanding Young Persons Selection Awardees”. In 2011, Dr. Lee
was appointed as Vice President of China Paper Association. He is
currently appointed as President of Centum Charitas Foundation. He
is also the Chairman of Raymond Lee Charitable Foundation since
2017. Dr. Lee resigned as an independent non-executive director of
the listed company, Bossini International Holdings Limited in
November 2017. Dr. Lee is the brother of Mr. Lee Man Bun, an
Executive Director of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Li King Wai Ross, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Lee Man Bun, aged 37, the member of the Political Consultative
Committee of Guangdong Province, MH JP, Chief Executive Officer
of the Group, is responsible for production management, sales, daily
operation, research & development, repair and maintenance of
production machines and factory staff management etc.. Mr. Lee
holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Applied Science in Chemical Engineering
from the University of British Columbia in Canada. He is the Member
of Commission on Poverty (Youth Education, Employment and
Training Task Force) and the Advisory Committee of The Enhancing
Self-Reliance Through District Partnership Programme. Mr. Lee is
awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2015” and is
the Founding Chairman of Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think
Tank. He was the Committee Member of Social Welfare Advisory
Committee from December 2011 to November 2017. He is the
younger brother of Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond, the Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company and is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Li King Wai Ross, an Executive Director of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (conminuep)

Mr. Li King Wai Ross, aged 42, an Executive Director of the
Company, is responsible for the global procurement of recovered
paper, logistics planning and optimisation, as well as external affairs
for the Group. He holds a Master’s Degree in Science in Electrical
Engineering from Stanford University in USA and a Bachelor’s Degree
in Applied Science in Computer Engineering from University of British
Columbia in Canada. He has over 16 years of experience in
production management, operations and technological research and
development. He is the brother-in-law of Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond
and Mr. Lee Man Bun, both of whom are Executive Directors of the

Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Professor Poon Chung Kwong, aged 78, GBS JP, a Non-executive
Director of the Company, is the Chairman of Virya Foundation
Limited (a registered non-profit charitable organisation), the Emeritus
Professor and the President Emeritus of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He devoted 40 years of his life to advancing university
education in Hong Kong before he retired in January 2009 from his
18-year presidency at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Professor Poon obtained a Bachelor of Science (Honours) Degree
from the University of Hong Kong, A Doctor of Philosophy Degree
and a Higher Doctor of Science Degree from the University of
London. He was a Postdoctoral Fellow at the California Institute of
Technology and University of Southern California. He also held the
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Humanities from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2009. He was appointed a Non-official
Justice of the Peace (JP) in 1989, received the OBE in 1991, the Gold
Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2002, “Leader of the Year Awards 2008
(Education)”. In addition, Professor Poon was appointed as a member
of the Legislative Council (1985-1991) and a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(1998-2013). He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Henderson Land Development Company Limited, The Hong Kong
and China Gas Limited, Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited and
Chevalier International Holdings Limited. All the aforesaid companies

are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony, aged 75, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, has been a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong
since 1968 and has also been admitted as a solicitor in England and
Wales. He is currently a consultant at Messrs. Hastings & Co.,
Solicitors and Notaries. He is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of the listed company, Lee & Man Chemical Company
Limited.

Mr. Peter A. Davies, aged 75, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, is a retired lawyer. He has over 47 years of
experience in the legal field, practising both as a solicitor and a
barrister in England and Hong Kong. Over the years, he has been a
partner of Messrs. Deacons, Solicitors, and a Directorate Officer and
the head of the Insider Dealing Unit with the Department of Justice
of Hong Kong. He was appointed to be a notary public in Hong Kong
in 1974.

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David, aged 54, he has over 20 years of
experience in corporate finance, covering projects ranging from initial
public offering transactions and restructuring of PRC enterprises to
cross-border and domestic takeover transactions. Mr. Chau was
formerly a partner of one of the big four accounting firms in Hong
Kong, holding the position as their Head of Merger and Acquisition
and Corporate Advisory. He is a director of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute, the member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales (“ICAEW"), and was granted the Corporate
Finance Qualification of ICAEW. Mr. Chau is also the member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and
was an ex-committee member of the Disciplinary Panel of HKICPA.
Mr. Chau is the member of Jinan Municipal Committee of the CPPCC
and Hospital Governing Committee of Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital. Mr. Chau is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of Man Wah Holdings Limited, China Evergrande Group,
Richly Field China Development Limited, Evergrande Health Industry
Group Limited, HengTen Networks Group Limited, IDG Energy
Investment Group Limited and Asia Grocery Distribution Limited. All
the aforesaid companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung, aged 51, is the Chief Financial Officer of
the Group and the Company Secretary of the Company, is
responsible for the internal supervision, management of the Group's
financial matters and investor relationship. Mr. Cheung is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 29 years of experience in the field of
auditing, accounting and financial management. He is an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Aoyuan Property Group
Limited and DCB Holdings Limited, which are listed on the Main
Board and the GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
respectively. He joined the Group in August 2002.

Mr. Yan Jean Goo, aged 52, is the Deputy General Manager of
Chongging Lee & Man Tissue, is responsible for the overall operation
& management of tissue business of the Group. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics from the University of Xiamen and has over 30
years of experience in production and operation management. He
joined the Group in November 2006.

Mr. Yip Heong Kan, aged 47, is the Deputy General Manager of
the Group, is responsible for cost controlling, corporate management
and energy saving projects. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Open University of Hong Kong, is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 24 years of experience in auditing &
accounting and corporate financial management. He joined the
Group in June 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

Mr. Ng Hok She Harry, aged 42, is the Head of Quality Assurance,
responsible for the packaging paper and tissue paper production
quality of the Group. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a
Master’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from McMaster University
in Canada. He has over 16 years of experience in engineering safety

aspects management. He joined the Group in October 2011.

Mr. Lee Ho Chung Jude, aged 43, is the Head of Information
Technology of the Group responsible for the Information Technology
Strategic Planning and Execution. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Applied Science & Engineering from University of Toronto in Canada
and has over 18 years of experience in IT supervision and 10 years of
senior management experience from different multinational

companies. He joined the Group in October 2011.

Mr. Chan Chi Ho, aged 49, is the Senior Production Manager of the
Group, responsible for industrial paper production management of
the Group. Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in overseeing
production matters in the paper manufacturing business. Mr. Chan
was former production manager of Jiangsu plant and rejoined the
Group in February 2009.

Mr. Chung Wai Fu, aged 53, is the Administration Manager of
Vietnam Lee & Man Paper, responsible for Hau Giang plant operation
and management. Mr. Chung holds a Bachelor Degree of Production
and Logistics Management and a Master Degree of Business
Administration in Human Resources Management from the University
of Southern Queensland. He has over 24 years of management
experience working in both multinational and local listed companies
in China. Mr. Chung joined the Group in November 2008.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESIRSREEEEN (F)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conmivuep)

Ms. Li Yuen Ling, aged 56, is the Senior Finance Manager of the
Group, is responsible for the Group’s finance activities, as well as
maintaining banking relationship for the Group. She joined the Lee &
Man group in 1984 and has over 33 years of experience in

accounting and finance for manufacturing operations.

Mr. Chu Kwok Lung, aged 55, is the Administration Manager of
Guangdong Lee & Man Paper, is responsible for the daily operation
and management of Guangdong Lee & Man Paper and has over 33
years of experience in manufacturing. He joined the Group in June
2006.

Mr. Chan Kong Sang, aged 58, is the Manager of power stations of
the Group, is responsible for the set up and operation of various
power plants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Engineering
from the University of Hong Kong and has over 35 years of
experience in operation and managing production and engineering
aspects of manufacturing businesses. He joined the Group in January
2001.

Mr. Tse Pak Kong, aged 54, is the Senior Manager of the Group, is
responsible for the global procurement of recovered paper
businesses. He holds a Bachelor's Degree of Science in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and has over 31 years
of experience in the management of both multinational and local
companies in China. He joined the Group in December 2005.
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OTHER INFORMATION

H 2 &

ULTIMATE SUPPLIERS AND BUYING AGENTS

Besides purchasing directly from the suppliers, the Group also
engages certain independent buying agents to source waste paper
from their ultimate suppliers mainly supermarkets, paper packing
companies and recycling plants. The Group’s buying agents in the
United States and Europe, namely Ralison International Inc., Mark
Lyndon International BV and Mark Lyndon Paper Enterprises (UK)
Limited, are ultimately owned by Mr. Albert Chiu Tung-Choi, a
distant relative of the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder,
Mr. Lee Wan Keung Patrick and his sons, Dr. Lee Man Chun
Raymond and Mr. Lee Man Bun, both of whom are executive
directors of the Company. These buying agents are not “connected
persons” of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules. They receive
a commission for sourcing the raw materials of waste paper and they
did not trade and are contractually obliged not to take a position on
or otherwise maintain an inventory of waste paper themselves. Their
primary role is to coordinate the logistics in order to have the waste
paper delivered to the Group, including on-site inspections and
customs clearance, and thereby reduces the regulatory risk for the
Group. The total prices paid for the waste paper (including the price
of waste paper paid to ultimate suppliers and commission paid to the
buying agents) were made on an arm’s length basis. The Group
sourced 30% and 41% of its total raw materials through these
buying agents for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
respectively. The commission paid to these buying agents amounted
to HK$88.3 million and HK$84.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder which
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

EEERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and a joint venture are set out in

notes 38 and 19 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 73.

An interim dividend of HK17 cents per share amounting to
HK$767,829,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during
the year. The directors of the Company now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to the shareholders on the register of
members on 17 May 2018, amounting to approximately HK$900
million in aggregate, subject to the approval of the shareholders at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders represented the aggregation of the share
premium, the contributed surplus and the retained profits and net of
the share repurchase reserve of HK$2,692,988,000 (2016:
HK$4,246,508,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7 of the annual

report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
at a cost of approximately HK$3,483 million (2016: HK$3,972
million) for the purpose of expanding its business. An amount of
HK$179,300,000 (2016: HK$375,665,000) was transferred from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties for
generating rental income. Details of the movements in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group's performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis,
respectively, set out on pages 8 and 9 and pages 10 to 13 of this
Annual Report. The outlook of the Company's business is discussed

throughout this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and are in
addition to the matters referred to in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis.

1. Economic climate and individual market
performance

The impact of economic conditions of China would affect sales
and results of the Group. The Group continues to implement
its strategies to develop and strengthen penetration of the
relevant markets. The management of the Group will continue
to make efforts to strictly control costs and manage the usage
of capital fund in order to maintain the Group's

competitiveness in the paper industry.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

%%ﬁiﬁi (IIE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (conmivueD)

2.

56

Loss of key individuals or the inability to attract
and retain talent

Lack of appropriately skilled and experienced resource could
result in a delay in achieving the Group’s strategic goals. The
risk of the loss of key personnel is mitigated by regular reviews
of recruitment and retention practices, remuneration packages
and succession planning within the management team.

Customers’ credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk by the Group which will
cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of
the recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group only extends credit to customers based on careful
evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions and credit
history. Credit sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts.

Details of the customers’ credit risk are set out in note 31(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note 31(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (conmivueD)

TERRETAREEE)

5. Currency risk 5. EB¥EKE
The Group has foreign currency transactions and foreign AEEBRBINER G RINEEE -
currency borrowings, which expose the Group to foreign NBAREEAZIINETERR - K
currency risk. The Group manages and monitors foreign SEEBRERINERR - UBR
exchange exposures to ensure appropriate measures are R RBMMHKBGEER® - A&
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The Group has B D@ SR LEEIINERAE DI
entered into certain foreign currency forward contracts to PEAK A B LB
mitigate the risks as deemed appropriate.
Details of the currency risk are set out in note 31(ii)(a) to the EERBABHINNGETBRE
consolidated financial statements. BEEE31(ii)(a) °

6. Interest rate risk 6. FIEEM

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to floating-rate bank balances and bank borrowings
and fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank

AEFBZHELSRENREBRTIER
FERBITHEBIBITEEARER
ROTEEZARBENERR - 12

BEAENXER IHEAFTER
ERYEHBBANKZE -

borrowings. The management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Details of the interest rate risk are set out in note 31(i)b) to FEERRFBHIN DG M FHRE
the consolidated financial statements. B 5E31(i)(b) °
GROUP’S ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND AEBENREBRERRKRE
PERFORMANCE
Other than financial performance, the Group believes that a high B BXRBIN - AEBERESREZLE

BEEHREYRIFEERME SR
BETRAAEEAEN HEZORYE
REZ - ARBBNRREARAEBLE
RARBI R AT EAIRE LB 2
ARERERELER -

standard of corporate social responsibility is essential for building up
a good corporate and social relationship and motivating staff and
creating a sustainable return to the Group. We are committed to
contributing to the sustainability of the environment and community
in which we conduct business and where our stakeholders live.

ARBZEBRRBERERRABHIINAF
WE260EEE46B2RE  HERER
WE e

Particulars of the Company’s environmental policies and performance
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 26 to 46 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

STAKEHOLDERS" ENGAGEMENT

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly.
This communication provides valuable feedback for our business and
assists us to understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way
to leverage our resources and expertise to contribute to future
business and community development.

Across the supply chain, we have taken steps through the year to
ensure that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our
customers, workforce, suppliers and other stakeholders.

An account of the Company’s relationships with employees is
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 10
to 13.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

During the year, the Company repurchased certain of its own
ordinary shares through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), details of which are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors considered that the
repurchases would increase the earnings per share of the Company.
None of the Company’s subsidiaries repurchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond, sss e (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Man Bun, mH Jp (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li King Wai Ross

Non-executive director

Professor Poon Chung Kwong, G8s Jp

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony
Mr. Peter A. Davies
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Li King
Wai Ross and Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond, Mr. Lee Man Bun and Mr. Li
King Wai Ross has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial period of three years commencing 1 April
2017, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by

either party by three months’ prior written notice.

The term of office of the non-executive director and each of the
independent non-executive directors is the period up to his

retirement as required by the Company’s Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

%éiﬁi (IIE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year, a permitted indemnity provision that meets the
requirements specified in section 469(2) of the Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company is in force.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the
Rule Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”), the following disclosure is included in respect of the
Company’s loan agreements, which contains covenants requiring
performance obligations of the controlling shareholders of the
Company as at the date of this Annual Report.

The Group has certain loan facility agreements where it would
constitute an event of default if any one or all of Mr. Lee Wan Keung
Patrick, Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond and Mr. Lee Man Bun (together
the “Controlling Shareholders”), the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company, ceases to legally and beneficially own, directly or indirectly,
in aggregate at least 51% of the entire issued share capital of and
equity interest in the Company or do not, or cease to, exercise
management control over the Company. Upon the occurrence of any
of the above events, the outstanding liability under the loan facilities

will become immediately due and payable.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EQUITY OR DEBT
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the directors and the chief
executives and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each of the Company
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Percentage of

the issued

share capital

Number of of the Company

Name of director Capacity ordinary shares {5&RQATERIT
EEpE 54 EERHE RAB DL
Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond Beneficial owner 283,426,000 6.29%
FXEEL BEHBEAA
Mr. Lee Man Bun Beneficial owner 309,130,000 6.86%
FXH L EmEAA
Mr. Li King Wai Ross Held by spouse 4,564,865 0.10%
FRBrEE mECEBEE
Professor Poon Chung Kwong Beneficial owner 100,000 0.002%
ERNHIR EmEAA

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives or
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations as at 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, at 31 December
2017, other than directors and chief executives, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of the relevant interests in
the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each of the Company
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Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of

shares held the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity BECRT (hEARSERIT
REREE 514 ZERER BAT DL
Gold Best Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner 2,536,710,000 56.30%
EmfBEA
Mr. Lee Wan Keung Patrick Held by controlled corporation (note i) 2,536,710,000 56.30%
BRI E B EHER RS (M)
Ms. Lee Wong Wai Kuen Held by spouse (note ii) 2,536,710,000 56.30%
TEERLT mEEREE (i)
notes: Mt
(i) Gold Best Holdings Ltd. (“Gold Best”) is wholly owned by Mr. Lee Wan Keung (i) Gold Best Holdings Ltd. ([ Gold Best ) f3 2 3&
Patrick. BEERTEHER °
(i) Under the SFO, Ms. Lee Wong Wai Kuen is deemed to be interested on the (i)  RIBEESFRMERY  dRFESBELLES
2,536,710,000 ordinary shares as she is the spouse of Mr. Lee Wan Keung B st (GoldBestBEm B A) BB » )
Patrick, a beneficial owner of Gold Best. A8 A A %2,536,710,0000% & @A A9 #E2S o
Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified B - #t #% 58 & 51 - A2 54 & Mg 7

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 25 of this
Annual Report.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all

of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
the unqualified letter from the auditor and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the
Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business, on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from independent third parties, in accordance with the
terms of the agreement governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole; and within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (conminueD)

Details of the discloseable connected transactions for the year are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which are
required to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance

with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions”, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance, to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised of 31.5% of the Group’s total
purchases and the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales. In
2017, our largest supplier accounted for 11.1% of the Group's

purchase of raw materials (2016: 9.6%).

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder which, to
the knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the share capital
of any of the Group's five largest suppliers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERE (&)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Article of Associations, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing market rate. Other employee benefits
including insurance, medical cover and share options are also

provided.

The determination of emoluments of the Company’s directors has

taken into consideration their expertise and job specifications.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
HK$4,109,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Man Chun Raymond
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong

28 February 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

8 M % A

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
LEE & MAN PAPER MANUFACTURING LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lee and
Man Paper Manufacturing Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
73 to 180, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 RS (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter

BEEEE

EEETEE

RREFERTHEBRBEATHEE AL
RBRUAPGAVBRERNEARRER
MEHE ELEHREENTENERES
MBEHRRREABERBETRIERN - K17
TeHELEREHEBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FATIMIGRIE IR BT R

Impairment loss on trade receivables

FEWE 5 et 2 BiEE R

We identified the impairment loss on trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant degree of management judgement
involved in recognising impairment loss on trade receivables.
RITHANERE BRI EEE SARETFHERENGS MK
HRrvEZURERE2HEHAMNEYWE SHRFUEBRENEER
I

The carrying amount of trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$3,113 million, net of impairment loss amounting
to approximately HK$17 million recognised as at 31 December
2017. Referring to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management estimates impairment loss on trade receivables based
on management’s assessment of the ultimate realisation of these
receivables by considering the ageing of the trade receivables
balances, the repayment history, the financial conditions and
current creditworthiness of each customer.

2017512 A31H » BIE 5 RFEHIR E R EEIE A 14
1,7008 % 1% - BREMES £A31.13EB T - 2EHESMBHRE
MizEapmit - BREGARKE SRR REBEENEEELE
BE-—EFHNEKEZREFERZRER  ERES  MBELK
BATEEAN A UL F IR 2 ST a4t -

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment loss on trade
receivables estimated by management
included:

AT B IR E Lt W E 5 RFURE
BIEEEEHNTRERE

o Understanding how the impairment
loss of trade receivables has been
estimated by the management and
the approval procedures for
recognising the impairment loss on
trade receivables;

. B RRE TR B A a5t R E B BR TR
BEENREREWE ZREIFERR
LEMIRT

o Testing the accuracy of the aged
analysis of trade receivables and
tracing the subsequent settlements to
source documents, on a sample basis;

o AIFEWE 5 R BRER B R K AT
B BRI RIER |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BYZHMES (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (conTiNUED) BRESTEIE(#)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RRETEE FITUIREERRET SR

Impairment loss on trade receivables

FERE G MR 2R EE R

o For the trade receivables without
subsequent settlement, assessing the
reasonableness of management’s
assessment on the impairment loss of
trade receivables with reference to the
ageing of the trade receivable
balances, the repayment history, the
financial conditions and current
creditworthiness of each customer;
and

o HEEBMRENZEWESERR T
HEBE2EE TP ZREESK
HERIRE - BRER - BHEAR
RITEEMRRE B E R EE
BIEHAEEENE &

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of
the management estimates on the
impairment loss on trade receivables
made in prior years by comparing the
historical impairment loss recognised
to the actual settlement and actual
loss incurred, and tracing the actual
settlement to the source documents,
on a sample basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BYZHMES (&)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 RS (&)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BYZHMES (&)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine that matter that was of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and is therefore the key audit matter. We describe this matter
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ip Chiu Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 February 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

melEmREMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F 12431 H IFFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FEx FET
Revenue A 25,836,884 18,341,677
Cost of sales P& MR CERPINEN)]  (14,261,143)
Gross profit EF 7,512,854 4,080,534
Other income EfgA 791,671 545,701
Other gains and losses Hlhs REE (69,421) 22,250
Distribution and selling expenses DEREEEBRA (435,004) (251,943)
General and administrative expenses BERITHER (1,291,614) (875,307)
Finance costs B 75 Pk 72N (185,311) (167,218)
Profit before tax B 75 B 22 F) 6,323,175 3,354,017
Income tax expense MERLH (1,282,883) (491,274)
Profit for the year FERF 5,040,292 2,862,743
Other comprehensive income (expense) Eftt 2 H W (X H)
Item that may be reclassified HER BN EEBm s HA
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BRESIINEBEECERESE
translation of foreign operations 1,551,737 (2,142,492)
Total comprehensive income FEAXEKZ
for the year 6,592,029 720,251
HK cents HK cents
AL bl
Earnings per share B EF| 111.47 62.64
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma BRI &

At 31 December 2017 #K2017F12H31H

NOTES
FiEE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB &R 15
Prepaid lease payments AT ERIA 16
Investment properties KEME 17
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE -

property, plant and equipment and R 5= Ko 5% 45 B

land use rights :I:iﬂz@iﬁﬁ*%ﬁfrﬁﬂ@ 18
Interest in a joint venture SEERER 19
Loan to a joint venture EELEEN 19
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories T8 20
Prepaid lease payments Tﬁﬁfﬂff’ﬂ 16
Loan to a joint venture BELEEN 19
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K EH th BR 5K 21
Amounts due from related companies fE U B i N R SR 22
Derivative financial instruments MESBRIA 23
Margin deposits RESEK 24
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRIRER 24
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables fﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬂl%ﬁ%’f\ 25
Amounts due to related companies FET RN R IE 22
Derivative financial instruments mES nﬂlﬂ 23
Tax payable FERT IR
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAES

LIABILITIES

74 Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report

2017
HK$"000
TEx

27,458,855
936,881
581,602

152,178

97,453

29,226,969

4,954,319
21,310
36,890

6,775,828
21,709

4,127

2,248,641

14,062,824

4,672,298
14,742

326,923
6,025,745

11,039,708

3,023,116

32,250,085

2016
HK$'000
TAT

24,312,225

877,980

371,409

149,685

95,953

25,807,252

2,914,432
21,111

4,959,863
17,442
231

1,450
1,274,197

9,188,726

3,549,231

11,267
158,938
4,240,105

7,959,541

1,229,185

27,036,437



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

REPBRR R (&)

At 31 December 2017 #K2017F12H31H

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
MI5E FE T FHET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 9,051,959 9,306,737
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBEAE 27 1,282,008 906,735
10,333,967 10,213,472
21,916,118 16,822,965

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARF#HE
Share capital B& 2 29 112,635 113,642
Reserves =g 21,803,483 16,709,323

21,916,118 16,822,965

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 180 were £ 73ZF F180E FHMG M B RED R
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 201842 A28 AR EE & #t /& L IF# T

February 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: UWHNINESRERE
LEE MAN CHUN RAYMOND Z 318 LEE MAN BUN Z= 3053
CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERRBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F 12431 H IFFE

Share
Share Share  Translation Capital Legal Special Other repurchase  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve contribution reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
k&
Ba  RMEE EXRE  Z0ERM iRMRE  KRIRE  BMRE  BERE BB B4R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TERL TER TEn TER TER TER TERL TEn TEn TER
(note i) (note i (note i) (note iv)
ki) (k) ) (W)
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 710 114475 3565525 1,212,253 12,552 97 (2,999 (12,060) - 12,346,344 17,236,187
Profit forthe year EREF - - - - - - - - 28673 286,783
Bichange differences arisngon BN EBEL
translation of foreign operations 7 E X Z % - - 1049) - - - - - - (1049
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ ERNEZE
income for the year () - - (214249 - - - - - 286743 720250
Shares repurchased and cancelled R 17 B B R 3t 88 (633) (15634 - - - - - - - (157179)
Shares repurchased and yet tobe {3 B 1B A &
cancelled (note ) A (Hey) - - - - - - - @ - @
Dividends recognised as BRBARL
distibutons (note 13) B8 (HE13) - - - - - - - - (934176 (934,176)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 13642 3409183 (930,239) 12,552 97 (2,99 (12,060) (42122) 14274911 16,822,965
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - - 500292 504009
Bichange differencesarisngon~ RERENEBEL
translation of foreign operations 2 [E {25 - - 1,551,737 - - - - - - 1,551,737
Total comprehensive income Enpazaks
for the year - - 1551737 - - - - - 5040292 6,592,029
Shaes repurchased and cancelled  TR{AE B R 5T 4 (1007) (27533 - - - - - o - )
Dividends recognised as BAEDEZRS
distioutons (note 13) (R¥3E13) - (12646%9) - - - - - - - (1264659)
At 31 December 2017 #2017%128318 112,635 1,869,192 621,498 12,552 97 (2,999 (12,060) - 19315203 21,916,118
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

ma

Em2EHx (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F 12431 H IFFE

notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The capital contribution arose from the disposal of subsidiaries in prior years to a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group’s ultimate holding company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Macao Commercial Code, the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Macau are required to transfer a minimum of 25% of
the annual net profit to a legal reserve, whenever dividend is declared by the
subsidiaries, until the reserve reaches half of the capital of the subsidiaries. The
reserve is not distributable to the shareholders.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the
aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Group pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation in September 2003, and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The other reserve arose from the acquisition of equity interests in subsidiaries
from their non-controlling shareholders in prior years.

During the period from 23 December 2016 to 30 December 2016, 7,060,000
ordinary shares of the Company were repurchased at an aggregate cost of
HK$42,122,000. Subsequently, the repurchased shares were cancelled on 24
January 2017, and accordingly, the Company’s share capital and share premium
were reduced by HK$177,000 and HK$41,945,000 respectively.

fEeE -
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ELBERNBRFEHRAMARBERKEERAF—
REEWMBARLENBRRME -

RBORPIRERMES - A2 R RORPT A
BREARDERMEREDIRE  BEBETD
NERMAM25%NOEHE/ETAEE  BEE
RELEMBARABRAN—F AL ZELHE
ETERIRTERE -

Rl R RIE AR EN2003F9 8 AEARK
BARGHIBARMNRAREELREELARA
Wi R IAM BT RO E(EREE -

H 8 B A FE M KB QR 2 JER AR
U B HL NI S N R AR AR R A AE

R20164F 12 4238 E20164%12 A30H #
B Bl A QA E @A 7,060,000 % A HER A
42,122,000/ 7T - BEEIRGHEEEN2017F1 8
0B B AR RRARKGEE D
REL 2> 177,0007 7T k241,945,007 7T ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F 12431 H IFFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest income
Net gain from fair value changes of
derivative financial instruments

Impairment losses (reversed) recognised

B35 Al 2 F
LUR DN
R ER
B A
TEEMIARAARE
ZE)5 s
& Y & 5 B Rl (B &S 1R

on trade receivables (B£8R
Write-off of trade receivables FEULE 5 BR SR 85
Operating cash flows before LEASFHIN
movements in working capital KER SRS

(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in amounts due from

related companies
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in amounts due to related

7 & (45 R
R E 5 K EL A AR 5B N
& M5 88 33 X B SR IAIE AN

eI B 5 N B At BR 3R IE A
JE < B & 1~ B SRIRIE N

companies
Proceeds from and settlement of HETESRITAMS
derivative financial instruments A
Cash generated from operations REXBEENT
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax BT B ESH
(“EIT") paid ([EmBHI)
Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid BERNEBNEN
Interest paid ERFLE
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHMERSFH

ACTIVITIES
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2017
HK$'000
TRT

6,323,175

185,311
125,464

7,082
(11,957)

(9,960)

(EA )

6,615,955
(844,362)
(1,503,680)

(5,053)
807,039

15,528

(5.,203)

5,080,224

(757,327)

(297,578)

4,025,319

2016
HK$'000
THET

3,354,017

167,218
78,954

48,775
(18,005)

(7,412)

24,884
9,502

3,657,933
787,642
(529,094)

(1,851)
612,694

436

5,156

4,532,916
(262,502)

(2,530)
(346,337)

3,921,547



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

mERERER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F 12431 H IFFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and land use rights
Loan to a joint venture
Addition to investment properties
Purchase of prepaid lease payments
Placement of margin deposits
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received
Receipt on disposal of prepaid lease
payments
Withdrawal of margin deposits

REED
BEME  BERERE

BEWE BELRRER

T ERREMNET®
AEDEEX
IR E Y
BEEMNHEENRE
BHIRFESTR
LEWE - BER

JABFTISIE
2 FE
HEENEERE

FT1S 518

RIOREBESFR

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEFMARSFE
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES mhEEE

New bank borrowings raised MESRITEE

Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITEE

Dividends paid [RENESS

Payment on repurchase of shares B8 [B1 B 17 1~ 5%

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BMEFBRE(FRA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HE&FE

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN ReERBESEEYWEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CRD)F%

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EYTHEER
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR BHE&EEY

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES SEZR& &)~ 24

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2EER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, REEEY

represented by bank balances and cash IRITARAER KNI ®

2017
HK$'000
TRT

(3,108,116)

(56,594)
(37,406)
(21,741)
(5.369)
(1,488)

72,547
11,957

7,097
2,966

(CAEALY)]

18,257,195
(16,728,969)
(1,264,659)
(234,217)

29,350

918,522

1,274,197
55,922

2,248,641

2016
HK$'000
TAT

(3,501,434)

(2,995)

(236,405)

(68,934)
6,027
18,005

77,449

(3,708,287)

18,158,216
(18,776,749)
(934,176)
(199,297)

(1,752,006)

(1,538,746)

2,958,656
(145,713)

1,274,197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12431 H 1L F/Z

80

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands on 21 May 2003 and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding company is Gold
Best Holdings Ltd. (“Gold Best”), a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Gold Best is Mr. Lee Wan Keung,
Patrick. The address of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company is disclosed in the Corporate

Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and joint venture

are set out in notes 38 and 19, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of

the Company.

Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual

Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group'’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

FEFH%‘)T%T&“{I Rl BB
RELZA(BBMBREE
EUJ)
RAFEREERNEETEB
b e el
AEEARAFEEREAATAHE
AEgtHAg([EEGMAE])
B 2 BT BB G EA

BB ER BB
EVEACCHES)

BB ER FARZAEE
F12%(EFTAX) BERNBEE

BB B®RE €E20145 2
ZRIE 125 2016 F AMEE
CEHES B TS TR A AR A B

FRBEN D

BTN AFEREEABEERE
BHMBHRELENEAEERKF
ERBEFEZMBRR LR
R/FBRGAVBREZBEL
BEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mE

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

82

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (conTivueD)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will

be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 34. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 34, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE B RRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continuED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

FERFE] REEFT BB
a;&li]zjé?)ié"EEJ ([BEMBHREE
A1) &

B 9875 18 14 R AE AV AT A&
AEBYBREEL

AEET MRS EANTEERE
Mo IR BT AT RAG B BT BB B TS
S e

BEUBREENRIE 2RIA
FRMBRSRAZ R KERFAOHUA
il H

BEUBREENZ16Y AE
BAMERLENZR RBRAL
BEERHERERE  IERAREARE
Z8e)-REENE

BE(ERHERERE  FENAEOTERE
Z8e)-REEBH
BAMBRERAZE  WRG ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬂ

(3%) LERRHE
FEUBREENRAE  RREEMBREENRR
(3%) RECOE-(HEREEY
BREENRIHERTA
FRMBRERARYE  ATREATHERR
(31%)

ERUBASEARI0E REZEABEAARLR
RERGHEAZNE FMEELENTE

(B3TE)
BAEHENEE  RBLRAYLEHREER
(B3TE)

BEEHENZ8E  FROUEE6FARER
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BALHENZME  RENEHER'
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BEUBREEN WISEZ1TEEHRER
(B3TE) HBRLENRFRNE

1 7201841 A1 B st 2 4 BIG 2 S E 5
Faﬁi’j&"
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FEﬁE&&"

3 RETEM%Z GRS EHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (conTinuED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group
are:

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fan

B B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (conTinuED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be
recognised by Group as at 1 January 2018 would not be
significantly different as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

2.

FEFH%‘)T-T&,.Iﬂ R BB
RELZAN(BRBMBREE
,\JJ) (#)

BB BHREENFEIRESMTE
(%)

BEARREZEETGE  WASKEE
REMEABREAERX  AEER
20181 A1 B #Rz Rt REE
BeHE  HYEFESFERFE39
FETHERZRHREBESET
CHERER -

BEMBHREEDE
F&HHBA

BEVBREERFISHERSD

1558 KRB &

YHlE—fE-—2ERNA  HER
ANEREEPAENELENKAAN

fR- EEABMBMELREISHE
R - R B3R B o A R W A RE R
Bl BRBESERF 18R W
A BREHENFNREZESY
KAARRM 2R -

BFRMBHREERE15HNZOR
AR ERMEREAEE P EE A
FEMABRBHOEE  BRERR

ZEBEMR R BRZEE IR

EREESHRE  ABmME @ %E

Bl 3| ARERUL A B FLE 258

o F1H  HAEEFHAEY

e FE2F : HBAAHANMEBHE
£

o F3H  EERHE

o FAF BRBEHIEEZAY
ARENEE

o FS5H  EEBRNABHEMD
B (SR hoth ) HERR AR A

BXGERER AR 2017 F£3R 85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ma

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

86

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (conTivueD)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing

application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (conTivueD)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as

financing and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

2.
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88

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (conTinuED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$25,210,000 as disclosed
in note 32. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$1,863,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$6,097,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are
considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristic of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories, or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFIHEE#E)

(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value sboh - BB ERmmE - A EE

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the ERBANEFEGH AR ZIH

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are ZEERBABBH A BEEESR
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value EZEEMHWOBERE  F2XE3

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: & T

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active e FIRBABBREBNGE
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity HEEEERTISMMEREEL
can access at the measurement date; BERSZHRE(REHRAE)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices s F2BBWMABBRMEENE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset EEEIREEABERZ#AH
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and B BREE-RANZHER

oN R

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e EIBRWMAKBREEXBE

liability. B 7 B] B A ) A B o

90 Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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B B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

SETBE#)

T2EFEREHINMT ¢

RERBEE
TEAUBHRRRESARANULH
AR REMBEARZENNERZ

MBHmE - MEEHEREART :

o HWRESTTEREN

s HN2EWRENZEBMER
AEREFAERR: K

s BRENTEEBNMEE
5 o

WEERERER il = 8§ R
EHPR—BRZENE - BAEH
SEMAEERSMAENKKRE
7? o

EAREEERISHE QR 2 EHE
BHZMBRAGAE AR BEAX
SEXEMBARZEGE  EF
EEZMBARGA AR - AW
FOFEARBILEZWBARZ
YA Ko 37 HH & 7 A = B RS 45 il 4
EREFAGABEENEMEEK
mR BEASEHZMBARZ
ZHIERIEERBIE

EakEMEERENSMEEER T
BERARBEE A RIFERE
e IEEEBCRHERES L RE
Mg MWBARZEEZEWRED
CEBNARAEAARIFERE

?E?\_O
fHHEE - MHEBRR M BRERAIE

HFREE - UEHESFBRENEE
SRR - -

BXGERER AR 2017 F£3R 91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mE

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of the joint
venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in

the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint

venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

SETBE#)

op
T
>
6
m
mﬂm

T

fé w&ﬁﬁﬁﬁA

E an &§W$tﬁ$
MW&éHT%ﬂéE&E
REZETABEELERASS
WEREZRENREET °
REMAEEBIGRTET A # 5
BENMBBEFAABBHRERA
ZAEMBEBEAIANERBEZRE 2
HIR B AR -

I
?
FR
ﬁ
J>H-
S )
xi"T’ﬁ
=
S
:é'ﬁ

£
%
ES

aF M o> mE o
W oE M R R
»‘ﬁ@ﬁ%@

I
H

FERERBGEREIRMARTE
NEFTRERRTERAKREARELE
BuERTAMERE WF2
&ﬁi%%ﬁﬁ(%ﬁ?@ﬁﬁ%
BEtEREIREEREIERE
—BEFEREANF  HEAEERE
BERJKESE(EREERAR
ZBEE R ERAR) MALE - E
MERRZREBEBRZERER
EEN D Wz R EZ AU E
TREREN  AREBEBFEGTE
AIF 36 R AR EEER &L -

EEREEREAKREZAEMRE
ﬁ*%ﬁ ﬁé'ﬁ%x%%?i
ZN

EEERBzAED
%%m*ﬁ#$EEZﬁQ%%ﬁ
FRIER °

L ON

WA RERSHEEREZARE
i WARREBFEPRE

B0 K B A S UL 65 - W HIBR 3TN

KIHERBERA -

BXGERER AR 2017 F£3R 93
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods

are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income from supply of steam and electricity is recognised upon

the provision of the steam and electricity.

Income from the rendering of wharf cargo handling services is

recognised in the year in which the services are provided.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for

leasing below.

Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report

FTESEEERA)

WATER ()

WATIE WA S EENA ST E
FHER - BRANEERSRAE
MAAGERFTEAKE S XBH
R RERER - stmT -

HEEMBARE MR &A%
BB HER

TEVEEZF B AR B AR
i Al BE R AR S B T H R A S BB
Al St ERER - SRMEEZH
BRATIANRRAERIZREER
T RERBERFREE - M EERF
EREREEMEE A AFH
s B RAERSERITEEZ
BERNERIAK ZREFEZL

HEZREEN ZBAREHZESR
RENRGHER -

BRHREBEEYRBE 2 KAR
R IR 2 FIRHER -

AEBEREEHERRWAZ S
BER TXBHEEZ @5 BURHE

ﬁto



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of relevant lease. Initial direct
cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and

recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element

and building element at initial recognition.
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96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is

amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of and on the
retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or

loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group's interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit scheme are
recognised as an expense when the employees have rendered

services entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interest are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings, held for use
in the production of goods or for administrative purposes,
other than construction in progress, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets,
other than construction in progress, less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual

value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

Impairment on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on assets (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
following specified two categories: loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt investment,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets and is included in the ‘other gains or losses’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 31(iii).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loan to a joint venture, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies, margin
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of loans and
receivables below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments past the credit period
ranged 45 to 90 days and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial liabilities classified as at fair value through
profit or loss are derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liabilities and included in the ‘other gains or losses’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 31(iii).

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. fhEtFEABE R 2 EERIK

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability based on
management’s judgment. A considerable amount of judgment
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the ageing of the trade receivables
balances, the repayment history, the financial conditions and
the current creditworthiness of each customer. Impairment is
made based on the estimation of the future cash flow expected
to be received. As at 31 December 2017, an impairment loss
amounting to HK$17,034,000 (2016: HK$30,360,000) was
recognised on trade receivables.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Recognition of deferred tax

As at 31 December 2017, a deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$125,000,000 (2016:
approximately HK$107,000,000) was not recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the expectation for future profit streams
changes, a recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such a recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2017, except for certain profits of the
group companies in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
arising from 2016 and 2017, no further deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised on the undistributed profits of the group
companies in the PRC after 2008 as the Group plans to retain
those profits in the respective entities for their daily operations
and future developments. In case there is a change in such
plan, additional tax liabilities will arise, which will be recognised
in the profit or loss for the period in which the management
intends to declare such profits in the foreseeable future or the
Group's future development plan is amended, whichever is
earlier. Details of the above unrecognised liabilities are set out

in note 27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHER

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results LT AREBEESMBEMEEANES

by operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 AL HEHAEEIRKEERAR

Operating Segments, based on information reported to the EDEHRAREEN DT - WA

Company's executive directors, being the chief operating RNAIMITES  IZELEREKE

decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes of resource (TFE2RERXENDNERERDE

allocation and assessment of segment performance, which MFEHBRAMEF2ER &

focuses on types of goods delivered. The Group’s operating RRAIRZRNEDZ R - REER

and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 — Operating Segments BB IEREERIES L ZHE

are as follows: BT ZEERAIREDBEINMT

()  Packaging paper — Kraft linerboard, test linerboard, () BEM-FER HEFE
coated duplex board, white top linerboard and high o BmMARE - BEFER
strength corrugating medium; K =58 FLAB 4K

(i) ~ Pulp; and (i) #;: Rk

(iiiy  Tissue paper. (ill) FAELK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHBER (&
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results DERARFELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results NTRREERABREDHBE D 2
by operating and reportable segment: REBRAREESIT
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZE2017F128318LLFE

Packaging Tissue Segment
paper Pulp paper total Eliminations Consolidated
BRE % BEE  AWEE Eak )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET THET TERT TR

REVENUE A
External sales HINEE 23,102,581 15,593 2,718,710 25,836,884 — 25,836,884
Inter-segment sales DEEEE — 915,936 516 916,452 (916,452) =
23,102,581 931,529 2,719,226 26,753,336 (916,452) 25,836,884
SEGMENT PROFIT PEHEF 6,039,601 3,126 515,002 6,557,729 — 6,557,729

Net gain from fairvalue T4 4@ T A

changes of derivative NhEE

financial instruments Fl 9,960
Unallocated income APBZWA 84,071
Unallocated expenses AP (143,274)
Finance costs B RS RN (185,311)
Profit before tax Bh 755 B &2 7 6,323,175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE B RRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDHBER (&
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBUWARELE ()
Year ended 31 December 2016 BZE2016F12A31HLLFE
Packaging Tissue Segment
paper Pulp paper total  Eliminations  Consolidated
BEM 1 BER DEEE 4K e

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT TAT TAT TAL

REVENUE WA
External sales HIHMEE 17,034,048 303,086 1,004,543 18,341,677 — 18,341,677
Inter-segment sales NE7EIHE — 369,230 — 369,230 (369,230) —
17,034,048 672,316 1,004,543 18,710,907 (369,230) 18,341,677
SEGMENT PROFIT DEEF 3,293,194 23,454 86,003 3,402,651 — 3,402,651

Net gain from fairvalue {744 BT A

changes of derivative NAEZ)

financial instruments F R 7,412
Unallocated income KnBEzHWA 123,509
Unallocated expenses APz (12,337)
Finance costs B RS RN (167,218)
Profit before tax BRI AT B A 3,354,017

& oy BP 2z & R SR S R 3 P He
KEE :Jrftﬁlﬁ—ﬁ ° “*B&ﬂ

Fm

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Z

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment BEDEMERAT - Eio N
without allocation of net gain from fair value changes of KEINTER mﬁlﬂ’\ﬁ@miﬂ%’ruﬁl
derivative financial instruments, rental income, interest income, = HEeEWA -~ FIBWA - EHF
net exchange gain (loss), finance costs and other unallocated W= (EE) BB AREMRD
administrative expenses. This is the measure reported to the RITHER - IR EELERE
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance EEREBERS R RKXRTAMER
assessment. ZETBHE o

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEb 2 M E DIRRITTM IS ERE

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTRRAIREDBEI D 2 AE
by reportable segment: BERBESIT
Packaging Tissue
paper Pulp paper Consolidated
BHEEK b4 HEE ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FTHET FTHET
As at 31 December 2017 M2017612A31H
Segment assets DB EE 32,086,459 1,892,725 6,295,886 40,275,070
Unallocated assets Ko ZEE 3,014,723
Consolidated total assets IREBEE 43,289,793
Segment liabilities DEEE 2,834,924 20,369 288,451 3,143,744
Unallocated liabilities AnBEZEE 18,229,931

Consolidated total liabilities Lewas 21,373,675

As at 31 December 2016 ®20165F12A31H

Segment assets DEEE 27,675,990 1,673,196 3,832,763 33,181,949
Unallocated assets KD EE 1,814,029
Consolidated total assets REBEE 34,995,978
Segment liabilities DEHBE 2,425,549 13,363 116,283 2,555,195
Unallocated liabilities Koz aE 15,617,818
Consolidated total liabilities mAEBaE

18,173,013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTEHEEREBEE)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REBZDBERAMR D HE SR E
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated B -FBEEEASE TEEDE (&
to operating segments other than investment properties, EME - -TESRIA  REZF
derivative financial instruments, margin deposits, bank balances HRITERERREEBARED
and cash and other assets used jointly by reportable segments, BRI PR A 2 HoAh & ERR SN ) LA K PR
and all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than FEBEHSIETERED I (TTESR
derivative financial instruments, tax payable, bank borrowings, TH ENBIE- RITEE  BEL
deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities for which reportable MEEERAIRE DA LBENZ
segments are jointly liable. H B @ERIN) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M BHERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

116

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Other segment information

Packaging
paper
HK$'000
THERT
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12813A
Amounts included in the HENEEESK
measure of segment profitor D ELEEEBIE
loss or segment assets: IATEH
Addition to non-current assets 3 i 8 & E 18 0
(note) (M) 1,712,218
Depreciation of property, plant #1% « & &
and equipment HETTE 981,785
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment BB EE 6,678
Amortisation of prepaid lease  T& 8 & 70 8 # 8
payments 17,306
Impairment loss recognised ~ FEMWCE 5 B FURE
(reversed) on trade receivables 5B ([E#) 1,835
At 31 December 2016 M2016512A831H
Amounts included in the FFENEFETE
measure of segment profitor 9 ZE E B 1E
loss or segment assets: L/\T/i\%"E

Addition to non-current assets  3ER Eh & A& 1Z AN

(note) (B3 1,938,221
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ % - B = &

and equipment BEITE 823,487
Loss on disposal of property,  HEME - BiE &

plant and equipment HEZER 48,495
Amortisation of prepaid lease  F81<J 78 & 7K 18 #4 54

payments 12,625
Impairment loss recognised on  fEU & 5 BR 18

trade receivables BEE 18 FE R 16,370
Write-off of trade receivables [fEYE SR Z }ﬁﬂﬂl Eiz| 9,502

5.

WARDEBER (&

Httn &BE

Tissue
Pulp paper Consolidated
® HER &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THRT

60,348 1,757,586 3,530,152
21,003 93,116 1,095,904
404 7,082

1,740 19,104

(4,995) (3.160)

88,853 1,942,879 3,969,953

91,495 1,774 926,756
280 — 48,775
928 388 13,941

— 8,514 24,884
— — 9,502

note: Amounts included additions to property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payments and deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

No other amounts are regularly provided to the CODM but not

included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment

assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from major products REFTEEMHBA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its UNTAREEREFEEMBOEA
major products: DT

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Packaging paper (including linerboard 622 4% (62 45 4 I 4% K2 FLAB 4% )
and corrugating medium) 23,102,581 17,034,048
Pulp % 15,593 303,086
Tissue paper BELR 2,718,710 1,004,543

25,836,884 18,341,677

Geographical information b 15 & K

Over 92% (2016: 95%) of the Group's revenue were derived NEE 7 W AFEIEI2% (20164
from external customers in the PRC. 95% ) KB FEIINE R o
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented AEEFRBEEEMNDILEEM
based on the geographical location of the assets. EH 23 »

Non-current assets

FREBEE
2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
The PRC other than Hong Kong R BFEBI 27,080,950 23,769,900
Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”)  #ifa & = 28 LA ([ 877 ]) 2,128,625 2,019,507

Hong Kong B 17,394 17,845

29,226,969 25,807,252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about major customers ERTERFZEN
None of the Group’s customers contributed over 10% of the AE FHRERRNTEAEER
Group's total revenue for the current and prior reporting FIEAEEBZRAERI0% -
period.
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Value added tax and other tax refund BEFRER N EMERER 479,460 283,187
Income from supply of steam and HEZTRE KA
electricity 53,721 74,606
Income from wharf cargo handling KETHESEE BIRA 54,100 53,876
Sales of scrap materials and waste paper JBER N & 4K 45 E 43,518 45,597
Interest income from banks IRITFBULA 11,957 18,005
Others HAth 148,915 70,430
791,671 545,701
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HttmREE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SEREN (B8RS (75,459) 97,999
Net gain from fair value changes of TEeMITEAREEHF A
derivative financial instruments 9,960 7,412
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HEWE - HE LR EZEE
equipment (7,082) (48,775)
Impairment loss reversed (recognised)  fEUE 5 B FOREE B
on trade receivables [ £ (FER) 3,160 (24,884)
Write-off of trade receivables FEWE 5 BR i 85 — (9,502)

(69,421) 22,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. EAEEAZAS
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEER B 297,578 346,337
Less: amounts capitalised to property, WE VY BERREZ
plant and equipment ER{&5E (112,267) (179,119)
185,311 167,218
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from the FRZERMCEERRTIR —RE
general borrowings and are calculated by applying a ERES WUNGEBKEERZZ
capitalisation rate ranging from 2.34% to 2.94% (2016: BRI F N ER234%F2.94%
3.30%) per annum to expenditures on qualifying assets. (20164 : 3.3%)&THE -
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. MEBZH

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET

Income tax recognised in profit or loss: A I1BzE AR 2 FEH

Current tax REARIIR

— The PRC EIT — BB EMREH 913,361 373,132
(Over) underprovision in previous year EFE(FBEE) T ERE

- The PRC EIT — BB EMREHR (910) (2,135)

- Hong Kong —&B — 361
Deferred tax (note 27) EERIE (KI7E27)

— Charge to profit or loss —srAE&=E 370,432 119,916
Total income tax recognised in RIBRAERZBFIEH

profit or loss 1,282,883 491,274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Gy

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

120

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contivueD)

The Group's profit is subject to taxation from the place of its
operations where its profit is generated and is calculated at the
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The PRC

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to corporate
income tax at the rate of 25% except that five (2016: five) of
these subsidiaries are entitled to preferential rate of 15% for

the Group’s financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years. No assessable profit was noted
for both years.

Macau

The Macau subsidiaries incorporated under Decree-Law no.
58/99/M are exempted from Macau complementary tax (Macau
income tax) as long as they comply with the relevant

regulations and do not sell their products to a Macau resident.

Vietnam

The Vietnam subsidiaries are subjected to Vietnam Corporate
Income Tax at a rate of 10%. They are entitled to a corporate
income tax exemption for four years from the first profit-
making year and a reduction of 50% for the following nine
years. No provision for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has
been made for both years as the Vietnam subsidiaries incurred
losses for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M| KRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTiNnuED) 9. MEMZH#E)
Others Hits
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates Hi A ABEREEENHIEAZE
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. MREEERER 2 HERFE -
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per FARBRXEARBEEERRE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other b2 E R ST BFEENAT -

comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Profit before tax 5 55 g &= A 6,323,175 3,354,017
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% JERTZE25%
(2016: 25%) (note) (20164 : 25%) (PiE) 1,580,794 838,504
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAMBHZ N BT E
for tax purpose 94,998 67,744
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBMOBRARNTE T2
for tax purpose (6,652) (31,446)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHBEBEOR G T E 2,498 9,206
Effect of tax exemption granted to SBPTHT BN R ER R TN
Macau subsidiaries TE ({w1F)) (51,257)
Effect of concessionary rates granted R EAREEERERN
to the PRC subsidiaries 2 (364,100) (360,998)
Effect of tax exemption granted to RN B AR ER R
Vietnam subsidiaries PE 2,458 —
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries N ELfh BERE R & E WM B
operating in other jurisdictions NAIMTARARENZE 34,064 21,295
Overprovision in previous years BT FEERERE (910) (1,774)
Tax charge for the year FAMBHRZ 1,282,883 491,274
note: This represents the domestic income tax rate in the jurisdiction where a Misk : WRERAEEBRLHEBEEMEL
substantial portion of the Group’s operation is based. AERER 2 EHTERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z20174€12H31H 1L F/Z

10.

122

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. FEBF|

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

FEANEHEGEA)

Directors’ emoluments (note 11) E=ME (1)
Staff salaries and other benefits, BTIHS LEMBAH -
excluding those of directors TEREES
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREMF SR
schemes, excluding those of directors TRIEES
Total employee benefit expense EERAMZ BT
Capitalised in inventories EFAERE
Auditors’ remuneration Z B RN Bl &
— Audit services —ZE R
— Non-audit services —IEEBURTE
Cost of inventories recognised as expense FER AR A H
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments & {5 72 & FU0E # 1

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment
Depreciation of investment properties KREYERE
Total depreciation and amortisation e R tH AR
Capitalised in inventories EFEEARE

Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings

T REFHNEERERS

Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited
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2017
HK$"000
FTERx

37,894

1,158,979

58,545

1,255,418
(722,162)

533,256

7,826
863
18,324,030

19,104

1,095,904
13,467

1,128,475
(1,003,011)

125,464

14,763

2016
HK$'000
FTAT

37,600

903,038

48,718

989,356
(640,520)

348,836

6,486
1,595
14,261,143

13,941

926,756
2,599

943,296
(864,342)

78,954

10,825



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z20174€12H31H 1L F/Z

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (conminueD) 10. FERBR#)

2017
HK$’000
FEx
Gross rental income from wEME B BKA
investment properties
Less: Vo (21,828)
— direct operating expenses incurred for —FARNEERSKAL
investment properties that generated WEMEZBEZREERY
rental income during the year
— direct operating expenses incurred for —FAFFEERSRAL
wEME s EEEERY

investment properties that did not
generate rental income during the year

2016
HK$'000
TR

(3,737)

661

(3,076)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's remuneration for the

year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and

Companies Ordinance, were as follows:

2017

Executive directors
Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond
Mr. Lee Man Bun

(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li King Wai Ross

Non-executive director

Professor Poon Chung Kwong

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony

Mr. Peter A. Davies

Mr. Chau Shing Yim David

Fees
Fiok
HK$'000
TET
20175
HITEE
FXHEEL 16,500
EXREE(BEHTE)
14,988
NG 2,983
FHITEE
BUFHITEE
TRERLE
Peter A. Daviest 4
BERLE

35,665

124
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11.

EENERITEMS

FREFLERATENHESRE
EALEMRR R RBERGIRELT

Other emoluments
Hit#i &
Contributions
to retirement
benefit

Salaries
and other
benefits schemes
Fek RNER
HA g R bg R
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR

Total
&t
HK$'000
TR

16,500

16,500
3,700

37,894




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 1. EBERERIITEME )

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (contivueD)

Other emoluments
Hidi &
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefit
benefits schemes
Fees Hek RIKER Total
ik HitEh ATEIf T Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHx THT
2016 20165
Executive directors HITEE
Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond EXEEL 16,500 — - 16,500
Mr. Lee Man Bun FXREE(EEATE)

(Chief Executive Officer) 14,988 1,512 — 16,500
Mr. Li King Wai Ross PRBEE 2,983 717 — 3,700
Non-executive director FHITEE
Professor Poon Chung Kwong ERIHRKR — — — —
Independent non-executive directors B HHITEE
Mr. Wong Kai Tung Tony FRRAE 300 — - 300
Mr. Peter A. Davies Peter A. Davies’t & 300 — — 300
Mr. Chau Shing Yim David Bt 300 — — 300

35,371 2,229 — 37,600

LRATES - FATEFREL
FRTEFZMEETEEA T
DRAREARBRAEHEEFTHR
ERARBEFTNRFZME -

The executive directors’, non-executive directors’ and
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
for their services as directors of the Company respectively.
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B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

11.

12.

126

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (contivueD)

Dr. Lee Man Chun Raymond is also the Chairman of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chairman.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. No directors waived any

emoluments during these periods.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2016: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11.
The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals,

including directors, were as follows:

12.

. EZREFITENS (@)

FXRBEFASARRAERE - Lit
BEZMeBREFERTFMER
B IR 2 B o

HZE2017F K2016%F 12 A31H 1k
FE AEEBVEINE@HME T
EEERFHEEMALMAREH
BHREEPRRNE2ME - ZFH
M EmENEEREMNS

FuGRESMEAL

rEBEREHMe A AL  HEf
=f1(2016% : =) RARBES
MEMSERMEITHE - Afi&
2HEAB(BRER)ZAHE
LIl

Salaries and other benefits e hEMER
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes & {18 |5 2 it 3%

The emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000

1,000,001 L2 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001/ 7L 22,000,0007 7T
2,500,001 7L 23,000,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7L %E4,000,00078 7T
16,000,001 7L E 16,500,000/ 7T

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
4,17 40,855
18 36
40,891
Bl T ISR -
1
1
1
2
5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

13. DIVIDENDS

13.

2

Dividends recognised as distribution: BRAEDIRZRE

Final dividend of HK$0.110 in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2016
(2016: final dividend of HK$0.095 in
respect of the year ended 31 December

2015) per share 0.0954%7T)

Interim dividend of HK$0.170 in respect of #ZE 2017128318 ILEE
ZHRHERBEEAR0.1708 T
(20164 : E=2016F 128
B1AEFEZFEREER

the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: interim dividend of HK$0.110 in
respect of the year ended 31 December

2016) per share 0.110%7T)

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE
ZARHRE TR0 110 T
(2016%F : #=2015%F 128
BMEEFEZREAREER

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
496,830 432,950
767,829 501,226
1,264,659 934,176

A final dividend of HK$0.20 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: final dividend of HK$0.11 per
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016) has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year of HK$5,040,292,000 (2016: HK$2,862,743,000)
and weighted average number of 4,521,700,282 (2016:
4,569,900,468) shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share in both years was presented as
there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during
both years.

14.

EFREFZREEZE2017F12 31
BIEFERBREFR.208 T
(20164 : H=2016F12A8318 1
FERBEREGR11EIT) A
R ERERE A -

iz 28 A

ERANDIARXEE AT
5,040,292,000 & Jt ( 2016 F :
2,862,743,000% 70) R F NE 1T
% 5 hn # S ¥5 #4,521,700,282 i%
(20164 : 4,569,900,468 % ) A& %
K E -

an

B A PR E F R A | R IT R 2 B
BB AL TEFESRESR
Rl o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y12 - BERZE
Furniture,
fixturesand Motor
Computer equipment Leasehold vehicles Plantand  Construction
Buildings system i~ B  improvements andyacht machinery inprogress Total
gr EMAE  RERRE  BENERE RERER  BERES ERIR @t
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FhL TERL TEL TER TEL TR FhL
cosT RA&
At 1 January 2016 201651418 5,316,345 44,169 833,372 525,320 58,409 18,228,115 3,947,216 28,952,946
Exchange realignment EXEHAS (401,448) (3,248) (57,841) (38,407) (5374 (1373849) (201,769)  (2,081,936)
Additions HE 71,523 545 44,369 3,861 70,550 186,030 3,595,375 3,972,253
Transfers B 570,238 5431 85,848 9,365 11,607 1,154,762 (1,837,251) -
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (note 17) (Fiz17) (378,429 — — — — — — (378,429)
Disposals/written off e/ RE - (332) (1,491) (775) (6,514) (89,523) (165) (98,800)
At 31 December 2016 2016F12A318 5,178,229 46,565 904,257 499,364 128,678 18,105,535 5,503,406 30,366,034
Exchange realignment EREHNAA 253,191 2,164 38,959 23313 3,493 893,835 144,482 1,359,437
Additions HE 83,098 1,235 6,741 697 546 139,422 3,251,260 3,482,999
Transfers ey 1,223,658 2514 92,282 4,589 14,356 2,805,041 (4,142,440) -
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (note 17) (F3E17) (33373) — — — — — (145927 (179,300)
Transfer to prepaid lease ~ EEZANAEFE
payments — - — — — — (39,291) (39,291)
Disposalsfwritten off e /R (38,704) (137) (1,739) (1433) (7,410) (15.213) (47,517) (112,153)
At 31 December 2017 2017€12A318 6,606,099 52,341 1,040,500 526,530 139,663 21,928,620 4,523,973 34,871,726
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2016 201651818 1,343,618 31,125 357,469 218,382 44578 3,606,625 — 5,601,797
Exchange realignment  E} B384 (102,213) (825) (27,987) (16,521) (2,848) (277,589) - (427,982)
Provided for the year FhiE 222,465 6,118 80,626 25,795 10,617 581,135 — 926,756
Transfer toinvestment ~ EEZRENE
properties (note 17) (Fiz17) (2,764) - — — — — — (2,764)
Eliminated on disposals/ & /#i 8 5 4144
written off - (290) (1,358) (295) (5,523) (36,532) — (43,998)
At 31 December 2016 2016F12A318 1,461,106 36,128 408,750 227,361 46,824 3,873,640 — 6,053,809
Exchange realignment 3 EHEA 73834 3 20,525 11,090 1883 193,607 - 301,682
Provided for the year FRER 272,683 6,848 84,663 25,878 13,575 692,257 - 1,095,904
Eliminated on disposals/ & /iR E £
written off (15,643) — (1,339 (722) (6,167) (8,653) — (32,524)
At 31 December 2017 2017512A318 1,791,980 43719 512,599 263,607 56,115 4,750,851 — 7,418,871
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2017 2017€12A318 4,874,119 8,622 527,901 262,923 83,548 17,177,769 4,523,973 27,458,855
At 31 December 2016 20169124318 3,717,123 10,437 495,507 272,003 81,854 14,231,895 5,503,406 24,312,225

128 Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

notes:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

The above buildings of the Group represent buildings on land under
medium-term lease in the PRC.

Certain buildings of the Group are erected on land in the PRC with
respect to which the Group has not been granted formal title of
ownership. At 31 December 2017, the carrying value of such buildings
was HK$1,356,794,000 (2016: HK$1,172,652,000). In the opinion of
directors, the absence of formal title to these buildings does not impair
the value of the relevant buildings to the Group as the Group has paid
substantially the full purchase consideration of these land use rights and
the probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence of formal
title is remote. The directors also believe that formal title of these
buildings will be granted to the Group in due course.

As disclosed in notes 32 and 37, certain portions of the buildings have
been leased to a related party. These buildings were not reclassified as
investment properties as the leased portions are insignificant.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of

lease, or 20 to 50 years
Computer system 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Leasehold improvements 5% —15%
Motor vehicles and yacht 5% - 20%

Plant and machinery 3% -20%

15. ¥ - MERKE &)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

BXERAR AR 2017 F£3R]

btz AEERFHRTEPHEEL

Ho b2 BT o

SEEETEFERMARTEER
FRXEAERZFE L E - K2017
F12R8318 wEBFZEEE
% 1,356,794,000 % JT ( 2016 &
1,172,652,000/70) - EBER A KR
ZERBFIABERTTEEEEEM
EEFEE BARAEEEXHREH
BEZEIME AR RERIRRE
XEBENIEAMEE LS M
TEM EEFEEETABRERE
BRFHZEFEFZIEXEARE -

MMt EE32 K37 P - BFEFE T E
DEMF—HEAL - ARAELHM
TRE ZEBFUIRIEREED
%o

BRIEZTRIN - W% - BERREE
N EFA RS EER - REFAIREY
LAE 7R SHRITE AU B AR - R
T

gF AEREEE
5, 20%504F
EFEES 10%
R, EEEE REE 20%
HEMEEE 5%-15%
VR R 5%-20%
[ R eg 3'5%-20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FENHERIE
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land AEEENFHEHEFRAREHRHHEE
held under medium-term leases located in: HTRZHEEI AR

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER TET

The PRC H 906,207 846,861
Vietnam gl 51,984 52,230

958,191 899,091
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AREREMIEZ D -
Non-current asset EMEEE 936,881 877,980
Current asset RENE E 21,310 21,111
958,191 899,091
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of land use rights R2017F 128318 EBAER
in respect of which the Group had not been granted formal TEXEEE 2 T HERECZERR
title of ownership was HK$179,615,000 (2016: 8 /179,615,000% 7T (2016 F :
HK$245,732,000). In the opinion of the directors, the absence 245,732,000/870) - EER AKX
of formal title to these land use rights does not impair the value hETHHFEREIXNEERELTE
of the relevant properties to the Group as the Group has paid BEEEEEYMEXERE BAEAE
substantially the full purchase consideration of these land use BESXHABHBEZE L ER
rights and the probability of being evicted on the ground of an BoRERARRENES R
absence of formal title is remote. The directors also believe that BR T 4 (B + b ) #E & = T B o
formal title to these land use rights will be granted to the EENMHEETAKBREEGER
Group in due course. FHZELFREEAEG®E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REWEE

HK$'000
FHET
COST R
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1H1H —
Transfer from property, plant and EEAWE - REREE
equipment 375,665
Additions INE 2,995
Exchange realignment R EHAEE (4,753)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12H31H 373,907
Transfer from property, plant and equipment  E# B W% - KE MR E 179,300
Additions NE 21,741
Exchange realignment EHEHHEA 23,106
At 31 December 2017 M2017%F12831H 598,054
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H —
Provided for the year FANEE 2,599
Exchange realignment R EHMHEE (101)
At 31 December 2016 720164128318 2,498
Provided for the year FANEE 13,467
Exchange realignment R EHMAEE 487
At 31 December 2017 720176 12H318 16,452
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%12H31H 581,602
At 31 December 2016 72016512 H31H 371,409
During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain property, REZ2017F 128318 LFE - A
plant and equipment situated in PRC with carrying amounts of REBEENEWERE  RAE
HK$179,300,000 (31 December 2016: HK$375,665,000) was A 80179,300,000%8 7T (2016 F 12
transferred to investment properties as the management had A31H : 375,665,000 ) 245 T

changed the use of the properties.

NRFPEZME  BERRXHBCE
BREREDE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEe

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

17.

132

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTinueD)

The fair value of the Group’s commercial properties at 31
December 2017 was HK$147,700,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$145,939,000). The fair value of the commercial properties
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by BE L
MEME T EENEBR AR (2016: BMNEEBENEA
R ®]), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group using the market comparable
approach, with reference to recent market prices for similar
properties in similar locations and conditions, where

appropriate.

The fair value of the Group’s industrial properties at 31
December 2017 was HK$465,746,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$244,576,000). The fair value of the industrial properties
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by BE L
MEHET wEENGERAT Q016 7Y {EREET G ER
BT (E3@BA %)), an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group using the income capitalisation
approach by reference to the market rentals of all lettable
properties and capitalisation rate observed by the valuer for the
similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective

properties.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
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17. BEWHE (%)

AEERNEEMER2017F12 A
31822 R EA147,700,0007% 7T
(2016412 A31H : 145,939,000
BIT) o FEME AR EREER
CSEEBEZBUAEREEME
MEEMMNEHE THEEFES
AR (20164 : BINEBEZER
HERAR)  BEWMBLEELE
HEUMEREOUMLE RAEMH (M
HA)ZEEmBEREL ZGHES
;jj o

AEERITEMER2017F12 A
318 22 % {8 A465,746,0007% T
(2016412 A31 8 : 244,576,000
BIT) c TEWMEZ AR BREBER
CEEERECBUAEREEMBE
%E%@ﬂ%m?tméﬁﬁﬁﬁ
AR (20164 : FINEEEERT
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁamen B EES
EWEREMEMBAILHBEYERN
MEHEe REEMBZ2EMANNER
{EEWBIFEERNE BRI Y ¥ A8
ERAOBRBELARRIELENMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z20174€12H31H 1L F/Z

17. BEWHE (%)

M2017% K% 2016512 A31H » &
EEREVEFBRARBERRZ
BEERFEMWNT

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conminueD)

Details of the Group's investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 and

2016 are as follows:

Fair value Valuation Relationship of unobservable
Category hierarchy Fair value Carrying value Technique Key unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
=E:] ARERF MRE REE #ESR TERABREKE FUBEEABYA LB BE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THT TER
Commercial ~ Level 3 147,700 145,939 146,927 140,323 Market comparable ~ Transaction prices for similar  An increase/decrease in the
properties 34 approach properties after accounting for market transaction prices for
HENE LB floor areas and floor level — similar properties would
Renminbi (“RMB") 63,833 per result in an increase/decrease
square meter in fair value and vice versa.
BUMEEGREAREREE  BUMETSISEREN/F
ZXFHBR-FIIRARY LeERI AR ELM/
(TAR%])63,8337T R RZ IR
Industrial Level 3 465,746 434,675 231,086 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate of 3% to 5% The fair values of the Group's
properties  F34 approach B ER3%E5% industrial properties are
TEM% 63 inversely related to

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Monthly rent of RMB4.90 per

BXERAR AR 2017 F£3R]

capitalisation rates which
were determined by
prevailing market
transactions, conditions and
expectations.
REBTIENERAEREAL
KRR BRERATUR
RBITHERS RS

2

In addition, increase in fair value

square meter per month of industrial properties is also
AEEREIARARE attributable to the increase in
4.907T market rental during the year.

SN - TEMED R BRI
BERFATSEEHEN

FRALELAAEBAKBHEIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

17.

18.

134

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTinueD)

17

The Group's investment properties REBREYEDLE
comprise:

Investment properties located in: HEMELR -
The PRC =8|

REMZE(#)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
581,602 371,409

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term
of lease, or 20-50 years

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LAND USE RIGHTS

The deposits were paid by the Group in connection with the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and land use
rights for new production facilities. The related commitments
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment are disclosed
in note 33.

18.

Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report

P EMEREREESIRT
B FRmT
BF AEEsEE

8 20E 504

BEYE BERREBERL
o HEFTIRT &

IR E—RAKERTHEERNE
MBENYME BERKRERIH
ERENTE - -BEVE BEX
REHBRAENMEI3HE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z20174€12H31H 1L F/Z

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. BETERER

2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Cost of an unlisted investment in REZECEZREMREKAK
joint venture —
Exchange realignment PE N EFHAES _

Share of profit and other FEAE BRI R E M2

comprehensive income

Loan to a joint venture (note ii) AEPEERM )
— current — & 36,890 —
— non-current —3EmE 97,453 95,953

134,343 95,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

ke A Mg e S 2
19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (conminuED) 19. B ERERH)
notes: BT
(i) Details of the Group’s joint venture and its subsidiary at the end of the (i) RRERRNEE 2L RERENE
reporting periods are as follows: NAFENAT ¢
Issued and
Name of joint venture Place of fully paid share capital/ Proportion of issued and fully
and its subsidiary Form of incorporation and  registered capital paid up capital held by the Group
RELER entity operations BRARMERE/ FEBEEERTR Principal activity
EWEARAR {7 RYREESE HEfEE HRRALA ITER
Directly Indirectly
E% E# 3 3
2017 2016 2017 2016
% % % %
Joint venture:
RERE:
Southern Hill Company Limited Limited incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares — HKS$2 50 —  Investment holding
BHEERAR BRARRL Bl LRk-2%7 RERR
Its wholly-owned subsidiary:
H2EREMERR:
HEEXRERAR Limited incorporated ~ The PRC Registered capital — 50 Provision of port facilties
(Ruichang Lee & Man ARAANL P — US$12,000,000 REEARNE
Logistics Company Limited) iEx
~12,000,000%7C
(ii) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term of (ii) & A EAR® 31,357,000 (FHE R
repayment and provided to a joint venture in the form of a shareholder’s #136,890,000 7% 7T ) T3 4% E F F | %
loan and forms part of the net investment in the joint venture, except for 3.8%FH B RAMR2018F 12 A31HEN
an amount of RMB31,357,000 (equivalent to approximately Hh - ZERTDEER 2OREETER
HK$36,890,000) which carries interest at the fixed rate of 3.8% per FE - WARREREARHRERK RE
annum, and is repayable on 31 December 2018. EREFREN—F D o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

21.

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Raw materials B 3,602,795 2,689,543
Finished goods 2K M 1,351,524 224,889
4,954,319 2,914,432
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BERESZ RHEMERRN
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade receivables U E Z BRI 3,130,522 2,131,788
Less: allowance for doubtful debt o RIBERBME (17,034) (30,360)
3,113,488 2,101,428
Bills receivables TEINE 1,542,662 1,511,703
4,656,150 3,613,131
Prepayments and deposits for BERMENZRENT®
purchase of raw materials 845,540 687,653
Other deposits and prepayments HibzT® MFEf 08 152,023 50,594
Value-added tax receivables FE W 32 (8 5 1B 838,616 398,512
Other receivables JRE L L Ath BR 53R 283,499 209,973
6,775,828 4,959,863
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTinuep)

138

notes:

(U]

(i)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with a satisfactory and trustworthy credit history.
Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. The Group
allows its customers an average credit period of 45 to 90 days. The
following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables presented
based on the invoice date.

21. ERESZ R HEMERK (#)

AEERERNERMAFTLR - SaFh%

BEEEFPNEREERATHEEER
B GEHERERTREECHREN
BEF  BEFPEERETHMTURS - A
SEETEPNTHEARHARASAE
90H - UTRRERAMEINZEEE
S EEBRERNRERDT

Aged: BREG
Not exceeding 30 days BiE30H
31-60 days 31—60H
61-90 days 61—90H
91-120 days 91—120H
Over 120 days 12084 &

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx TET
3,821,859 3,210,017
645,979 293,645
125,958 57,991
31,758 25,873
30,596 25,605
4,656,150 3,613,131

Trade receivables of HK$4,584,221,000 (2016: HK$3,553,164,000) that
are neither past due nor impaired have good credit quality with reference
to the track record of these customers under internal assessment by the
Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the trade receivables of an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$722,973,000 (2016: HK$326,323,000) was secured by
customers’ properties interests and machinery being held as collateral.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balances are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$71,929,000 (2016: HK$59,967,000)
which were past due at the reporting date but for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss as the Group considered such balances
could be recovered based on the repayment history, the financial
conditions and the current credit worthiness of each customer, if any. The
directors consider all trade receivables (other than those for which
impairment losses have been recognised) at the end of the reporting date
are likely to be collectable under internal assessment by the Group.

(if)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTinuep)

notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

(Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which were past due but not impaired

21.

BWE 5 Kk H MR (&)

BRE - (#)
i #

BHENRBENERE S RO KRR

2017
HK$'000
TET

Not exceeding 30 days B30
31-60 days 31-60H
61-90 days 61-90H
91-120 days 91-120H
Over 120 days 12084

23,961
12,666

8,561
5,506
21,235

71,929

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

RERBEED

2017
HK$’000
TET

M A1E

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables  fEUE 5 BR 2R E BB TR
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables [ U & 5 BR 70 (& & 18 2]
Amounts written off as uncollectible RS 2 H 0 6 B8

At 1 January

30,360
2,434
(5.594)
(10,166)

At 31 December M12A318

17,034

The above allowance for doubtful debts are for individually impaired trade
receivables which have either been placed under liquidation or are in
severe financial difficulties.

Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2016
HK$'000
THET
27,858
14,817
4,806
3,149
9,337

59,967

2016
HK$°000
TAT
5,476
28,155
(3,271)

30,360

Ll R BR B 7Y ) B ) T R B MR SRR
EMRRECERE ZRRELRE -

(i)  WHNBHEEEERDEEBENRE

WHE 5 REMEETNT -

2017
HK$°000
FEx

HK$ BT
Us$ E

113,185
80,652

BXERAR AR 2017 F£3R]

2016
HK$'000
TAL
171,408
44,057

139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED 22. BEW({T)EBE R RIFKIE
COMPANIES
Amounts due from related companies disclosed pursuant to RIBEBRREGRDIE622G T AR
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 622G are as o B AR RIBMNT ¢
follows:

Balance at Balance at Maximum amount

31 December 1 January outstanding during

2017 2017 FRANREEHE

Name of related company Terms R2017% 20174
BEATEE 58 12831844 1R B8 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAT TER TET

Lee & Man Chemical CompanyLimited  Unsecured and

(“Lee & Man Chemical ") (notei) non-interest
B IBERAR(EXET]) bearing

(B &) BERREE
Lee & Man Industrial Manufacturing  Unsecured and

Limited ("LMIML") (noteii) non-interest
BNEEARAA(EXEE)) bearing

(P& EERREE
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RE M RR M (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED

COMPANIES (continuED)

The amounts due from related companies represent trade
balance due from Lee & Man Chemical and LMIML. The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free with credit period of 45
days and are aged less than 45 days.

notes:
(i) The company is beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Lee Wan Keung
Patrick, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

(ii) The company is indirectly wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Li King Wai
Ross who is also a daughter of Mr. Lee Wan Keung Patrick. Mr. Li King
Wai Ross is a director of the Company.

The amounts due to related companies represent trade balance
due to Lee & Man Chemical. The amounts are unsecured,
interest-free, with average credit period of 30 days and are
aged less than 30 days.

The amounts due from related companies that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

22. BUWW()BBERRIFRIB(#£)

FEW RAE R R FIAT RYSE XL T
REXBEENEDEH  ZFHE
TEEE - 28 MEEEH45A
NERE L4580 -

G
() HAFAARASLEERERFERE
R R o

(i) ZARAFRBEEZEBERNR/FTE
BAEEZHRHEZERE - FEESL
ERARBES -

ENBEERRFADGEMNEX(T
MEDESR ZFHRBAHEER
2B FHEEHI0BERERIR
30H -

2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

Amounts due from related companies & Y B 38 A 81 F I8
— HK$ R

1,599
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. fTHEEmI A

2017
HK$’000
TERT

Derivative financial assets
- net settlement

Foreign currency forward contracts

(note i)

TESHMEE-FERY

SNSRI A #9 (BT EED

Derivative financial liabilities

- net settlement

Foreign currency forward contracts
(note i)

Agricultural commodity future contracts £ %7 @ HIE A 4 (M &Eii)

(note ii)

TTEERAE - FEXNK

SNSRI A # (BT RED
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2016
HK$'000
TR

231

11,152
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11,267



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23. fTEE®MIA®)

(CONTINUED)
notes: PEE -
(i) Foreign currency forward contracts (i) HERHER
Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as at R2017F12A31 B RTMINEESE
31 December 2017 are as follows: Rz EBIERMAT -
Notional amount Currency conversion
BesE EHEn
7 contracts to buy EUR29,519,498 in total EUR1 to HK$9.1143-9.3440
7&K E 29,519,498 1B H9.1143-9.344074 7T
Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as at R20164F 12 A31 AR EMEINEERE
31 December 2016 are as follows: MZEBGRWT
Notional amount Currency conversion
#essE EHEn
6 contracts to buy EUR2,660,000 in total EUR1 to HK$8.5350-8.6389
6174 #1F£ E 2,660,000 T 1BUJT 5,8.5350-8.6389/% 70
3 contracts to buy EUR11,200,000 in total EUR1 to US$1.0610-1.0644
3 E#IFLE 11,200,000 7T 1B 1.0610-1.06445 7T
14 contracts to buy US$47,359,000 in total US$1 to HK$7.7474-7.7513
143 & %) E47,359,000% T 1ETLH7.7474-7.7513 7T
The above contracts will mature within six months (2016: six months) FEHBRREBRRESEA (2016
after the end of the reporting period. F:RNERA)NEE -
The fair values of the above derivative financial instruments were FlfTEeMITEZ AR BERIEER
calculated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable REINEERDT 2B RERES
forward foreign exchange rates. .
(ii) Agricultural commodity future contracts (net settlement) (i) EEERYPEENCRFERRK)
As at 31 December 2016, the Group entered into corn starch future M2016%F12HA318 » KEEE Y EXK
contracts in order to manage its exposure to the price risk of corn starch BHEHEAGYNUEERIRBNEFEEZE
inventories. These contracts are actively traded in an active market and BERR - LEAHNIRNERTISEER
are measured at fair values based on unadjusted quoted price at the end SR RERRKAEHAEZREZ AR
of the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in profit or BstE  BEREZEERER -
loss.
Major terms of the agricultural commodity future contracts outstanding MERRRTEREERREANZE
at the end of the reporting period are set out below: BEZMT
31 December 2016 A20165F128318
Standard
Contract price trading unit Total unit Maturity date
ARER BERXZEN wEN ZHA
Corn starch future contracts:
FORBHEEEL
Buying at prices ranging from 10 tonnes 800 17 May 2017
RMB1,798 to RMB1,812 per ton 10WA 201795H17H

BEAEREWARE1,798TEARKE1,8127T

BXERAR AR 2017 F£3R]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M BHERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

24. MARGIN DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND 24, REESER MITHEBRRE

CASH &
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and BTERERE2BEAEEFTAED
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three e MR AF3ME A AN E
months or less. HRITEN ©
Margin deposits represent deposits placed with financial RESHERDNDERRERBE LT
institutions to secure the Group’s margin accounts with these FoABEERAEER LS & 5
financial institutions for trading commodity future contracts. %Zf% TeRPAETEmBPER
The margin deposits are non-interest bearing. c REBESFHRALMEFE o
Margin deposits and bank balances and cash that are WHNEAEEEREEEEE
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency HNRFSEARLRITEBRRSH
of the relevant group entities are set out below: T
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
HK$ 5T 24,189 28,616
us$ e 22,619 42,806
Euro ("EUR") & T ([ BT ) 88 130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BERHE S REAMIERMK
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Trade and bills payables ENE S REEERR 3,129,001 2,555,195
Construction fee payable B TRER 665,117 463,646

Accruals EEtER 346,378 167,460
Receipt in advance B U FRIE 127,566 122,516
Other payables H th & 1< 5B 404,236 240,414

4,672,298 3,549,231

notes: Bt -
(i) The average credit period taken for trade purchases ranges from 30 to (i) BEHBE FHRKPHI0E1208F
120 days. The following is an aged analysis of the trade and bills payables Lo TRANBEPRZEZLIRZE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. NBGREBER ZERE DN -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Aged: BRie
Not exceeding 30 days THBiE30H 1,227,564 1,213,666
31-60 days 31-60H 642,141 603,054
61-90 days 61-90H 537,183 350,298
91-120 days 91-120H 690,208 370,937
Over 120 days 12084 & 31,905 17,240
3,129,001 2,555,195
(i) Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other than (i) WIHAEREEEBNEEEAENE
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below: NHESREMBREAT :
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
EUR BT 288,205 318,119
uUs$ E 2,037,063 1,737,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. RITEE
The Group's bank borrowings, all of which are unsecured, AEBEZROTEBEE(2HHR/EER
comprised: )8

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FET

Bank loans RITER 13,703,459 12,566,561

Bank import loans IRITHEOER 1,374,245 980,281

15,077,704 13,546,842

The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: $R7T{& & 8B HRHMT

Within one year —F R 6,025,745 4,240,105
More than one year, but not exceeding BR—FELRME
two years 887,293 866,445
More than two years, but not exceeding BEMFELRAESF
five years 8,164,666 8,440,292
15,077,704 13,546,842
Less: Amount due within one year shown B YR AEREBER
under current liabilities —F R B HFRIE (6,025,745) (4,240,105)
Amount due after one year —F & E|H AR 9,051,959 9,306,737
notes: B 5
(i) All bank borrowings as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$13,412,011,000) (i) M2017F 12 A3 B BRITEE
carry variable interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Interbanks Offered (20164 : 13,412,011,000/% 7T ) &%
Rate ("HIBOR") plus 0.90% to HIBOR plus 1.50% or London Interbanks B FREHBEBRITRAEZRE(EE
Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 0.90% to LIBOR plus 1.25% (2016: ranging SRITRIZENRE 1) M0.90% F1.50% =k 1
from HIBOR plus 1.10% to HIBOR plus 2.29% or LIBOR plus 1.10% to FRITREFE([RBBITRAERS])
LIBOR plus 1.25%) per annum. hN0.90% £ 1.25% (20164 : HERST

FIZEHREIM1.10%E2.29%  Sfp R
TREZEFREM.I0%E1.25%) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z20174€12H31H 1L F/Z

26. BANK BORROWINGS (conminuED)

notes: (Continued)

U]

(ii)

(Continued)
All other bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016 are fixed-rate bank
borrowings which carry interest at rates ranging from 3.48% to 4.35%
per annum.

The weighted average effective interest rate of the Group’s bank
borrowings are as follows:

26.

RITEE#E)
AT ¢ (40

)

(%)
MR20166F12A31B A EMIEITEE
BTEE  FBEEMH3.48%ZE4.35% °

AR RIS 2 2 HI R AR B
o -

2017

Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE

N/ATE
2.46%

HK$5,250,745,000 (2016: HK$4,036,081,000) in bank borrowings of
HK$6,025,745,000 (2016: HK$4,240,105,000) which are repayable
within one year contain repayable on demand clauses.

(if)

— & N 5| 89 48 17 f& B 6,025,745,000

770 (2016 4F : 4,240,105,00078 7T )
&+ 5,250,745,000/8 7T (20164 :
4,036,081,000/870) B EEKERZ

3/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRE B AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. BEBIEEE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised TRAFZEBREERBEER
and movement thereon during the current and prior year: NEERLEFEZEE -
Undistributed
earnings
Accelerated of the PRC
tax subsidiaries
depreciation Hh Bl FfY
B3R B 18 ARZ Total
wE RKoOBER &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2016 R2016F12/81H 897,827 4,145 901,972
Charge to profit or loss FFAET 119,916 — 119,916
Exchange differences b H Z5E (115,153) — (115,153)
At 31 December 2016 7R2016F12H31H 902,590 4,145 906,735
Charge to profit or loss FFABE 107,606 262,826 370,432
Exchange differences b H Z5E 4,841 — 4,841
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12H318 1,015,037 266,971 1,282,008
notes: B s
(i) As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of (i) M2017F 128318 - AEBH KR
approximately HK$125,000,000 (2016: HK$107,000,000) available for FREAAEREMARRT ZHEEB
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in 18 #) /125,000,000 % 7T (2016 F :
respect of such losses for both years due to unpredictability of future 107,000,000 7T ) BB HIETEET R
profit streams. As at 31 December 2017, tax losses of approximately REFRRA  MEFELRRZES
HK$25,000,000 (2016: HK$21,000,000) attributable to the PRC BHERARBREREEE - R2017F12
subsidiaries and approximately HK$84,000,000 (2016: HK$71,000,000) A318 @ FiIEE 425,000,000 T
attributable to the Vietnam subsidiaries will expire at various dates up to (20164 : 21,000,000 7T ) K 4 7 &
and including 2022 (2016: 2021). As at 31 December 2017, tax losses of [} B8 2 ) & 4984,000,00078 7t (2016
approximately HK$16,000,000 (2016: 15,000,000) attributable to the 171,000,000 70) k8 EEHBEA
Hong Kong subsidiaries may be carried forward indefinitely. A BREZEWBIE202254 (20164 -
20215) 2 Z{ATR B BRI - 42017
F12H318  HIEEIEL 16,000,000
7L (2016%F + 15,000,000/ 7T) K &
EEMBAR - AGA R A A -
(i) According to the EIT Law, dividend paid to foreign investors out of profit (i) WEBECEMSHZE B2008F1/1H
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earned by entities established in the PRC from 1 January 2008 onwards is
subject to withholding tax at 10%. For investors incorporated in Hong
Kong and holding at least 25% of equity interest in a PRC company, a
preferential rate of 5% can be applied. The Group has not recognised
deferred tax liability in respect of the certain undistributed profits of some
of its PRC subsidiaries because the directors believe that the Company is
able to control the timing of the distribution by its subsidiaries such that
no withholding tax will be payable in the foreseeable future. As at the
end of the reporting period, the deferred tax liabilities in relation to the
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised were approximately HK$351 million
(2016: HK$401 million).
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HO25%RMIRES  BREERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 28. RIKEF TS

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes monthly the lower of
HK$1,500 or 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs to the
MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is
to make the required contribution payable on the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$58,545,000 (2016: HK$48,718,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes. As at 31 December 2017,
contributions of HK$21,000 (2016: HK$47,000) due in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2017 had not been paid to the
plans. The amounts were paid subsequently to the end of the

reporting period.

REMRETE

REBEBBEAMBEERERR
VHAESEE - RE S E
WEEREAEENEESHATH -
LERBAGIABENES - A&
B 1,5008 ek B AFHKED
5% * UWBRIEEBE - AREDTE
T BEB ZHR—H -

A E Y WIS B —F (9
AT R R AR B R (43 -

TENEARREANEESZSEASD
BT 2 im0 B R B R R KR A
itEl - hEMEARAREES
METAEDL - FRKE NS H
FAERBEHNZA - REEHIRK
B BN -BEREFELETE

R -

MBI PER 2 158,545,000
L (20164 : 48,718,000 70) A
AEBIRFERTE 2T EHZ
ZEtEl 2 BT e 201712 A
318 EZE2017F12A318 1
FEEB RN E 521,000/ 7T
(20164 : 47,0008 7T) ° 2 S H
EEMEBREESZ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
EBERYE &5
Note HK$'000
it TER
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each 20165 1H18
at 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 2016F12A318 Rk
and 31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
BFH%0.0258 LAY @A 8,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each #2016F 1418
at 1 January 2016 BiR0.025B LR LBk 4,579,000,000 114,475
Shares repurchased and cancelled ARV & i (i) (33,340,000) (833)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each 2016%12A318
at 31 December 2016 FR0.0258 TR AR 4,545,660,000 113,642
Share repurchased and cancelled 17 B ) S At 8 (i) (40,256,000) (1,007)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each R2017%F12A318
at 31 December 2017 F0.0258 TR R R 4,505,404,000 112,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (conminuED)

note:

(U]

The Company repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as

29. BA (&)
Mt -

() ARRRBXABEE S ZRONT

follows:

2017 20175
Aggregate
No. of ordinary consideration
shares of Price paid per share paid (including
HK$0.025 each BRI AHERE expenses)
Month of F1R0.0255%8 T Highest Lowest SEEARE
repurchases BE A5 ZEBR BE B (BER)
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
BT BT FERT
March 2017 201743 A 11,213,000 6.29 69,927
April 2017 2017444 2,792,000 5.90 16,525
May 2017 2017458 7,955,000 6.10 48,350
November 2017 20174 11A 7,480,000 8.84 65,789
December 2017 2017412 A 3,756,000 8.99 33,626
33,196,000 234,217

2016 20164
Aggregate
No. of ordinary consideration
shares of Price paid per share paid (including
HK$0.025 each BRI IER expenses)
Fh20.025% T Highest Lowest AFTERRE
Month of repurchases  B&E[E A1p 2 BB &= KK (2E®)
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FET
January 2016 2016514 20,951,000 4.20 3.92 85,618
March 2016 2016434 680,000 5.00 497 3,397
May 2016 2016454 770,000 5.00 4.97 3,859
December 2016 2016412 A 17,999,000 5.98 5.79 106,423
40,400,000 199,297

Out of 40,400,000 ordinary shares repurchased, 33,340,000 shares were
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2016 while the remaining

7,060,000 ordinary shares were cancelled in January 2017.

REBZE2016F12A31 B IEFE
40,400,000 f% & Bl L @ ik & F

33,340,000 % B 5 B A F A 8
M # T 2 7,060,000 % & i i% BE 1% £

201791 BaEsH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include the bank borrowings, and equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the

30. EXEERE

AEBERHEEANERAEEDN
ERUFELEEY  WEBKE
BEHEERL I RERTE ARRH
REOE - AEENEBBRRERS
HEEF—H-

AEENERAGEBRRBER  EF
BRETEEARARAEDRFA
AEEEZ(BREBTRARZIA
) -

ARBEETHRTENERE - 1F
BEEH Y EEEEELK
AUFREZBEERNEROAR - R
BREENER  FA5REBEBIRNM
BB~ BEATHEN IR R R [ A DA K &
THEIBEQNREFHEERENRN

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. W

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31. T A

(i) Categories of financial instruments (i) =mIAE7

Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss —

derivative financial instruments

Loans and receivables (including cash

and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities

Fair value through profit or loss —
derivative financial instruments

Amortised cost

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
cHWEE
BAREFABR -
MESMIE 4,127 231
B U BR 5K
(BEBE4RBELZEY) 7,344,342 5,216,434
cHEE
BRAREFABR -
PTESBMTA — 11,267
SR AR 19,290,800 16,810,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE B RRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminvuep)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include a loan to
a joint venture, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from (to) related companies, derivative financial
instruments, margin deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, and bank borrowings. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(a)  Currency risk
The Group has foreign currency transactions, which
expose the Group to market risk arising from
changes in foreign exchange rates. In order to
mitigate the foreign currency risk, foreign currency
forward contracts are entered into by the Group for
certain material foreign currency transactions.
Management monitors other foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider the use of

hedging instruments when the need arises.

(ii)

1. EMIA®)

BREREERNREE

AEENETZESRTARES
EREER  BRESKEM
R EU () BEQRR
H-TESBMI A REST
FoRITEHRLRBRS  EBHE
SREMERREBITEE - &
BT EMFBAHEEWNZTRE
% HZELMTABBEMNE
BEMSRER(EERAR
ﬂ%@@&ﬁm%%@@%
FERBEABESER - 10
o] 4% A 5% 5 3 & &0 B3R 851 7
T - BEETERETZS
BB - AR KA U R A
HEMERE -

5 Rk

(a) E&Ek
AEBGFHEIINERZS - =
REEBERZINEER G
SRR MHERERE - BT
FRESNE R - ANEER
ATERINER BETLHN
%i%A@°ﬁﬁF%%
YR EMINE R -
%%%Mgkﬁﬁﬁﬁl
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD) 31. €M T A#)
(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER
policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) MG (&)
(a)  Currency risk (Continued) (a) E®REpR(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant REBRIHRE B I FELAE
monetary assets and monetary liabilities, excluding HMEEERNEEEE
intercompany balances and derivative financial ZEEEHEEREKA
instruments, that are denominated in currencies B(RIRARERRITE
other than the functional currency of the relevant TR I AR MWEREE
group entities at the reporting dates are as follows: s
Monetary assets (note): B EE(ME)
2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
HK$ BT 139,831 201,623
us$ ET 103,271 86,863
EUR BT 88 130
Monetary liabilities (note): BE¥a®ME)
2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 51 —
Us$ ETT 2,037,063 1,737,267
EUR B 288,205 318,119
note: The above amounts exclude HK$/US$ amounts where the MieE . Ll B ABERBER
functional currency of the relevant group entities is US$/ ERMEEBAEZT B
HK$ because HK$ is pegged to the US$, as a result of TR ETEE B
which the exchange exposure is not significant. B TTEETTAN - EL

I 48 5 ROE R -

154 Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD) 31. €T A#)
(i) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER
policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) MR (&)
(a)  Currency risk (Continued) (a) E®REpR(E)
In addition, intercompany balances denominated in AN - AINEEEHE 2 ED
foreign currencies are as follows: NEEREHRINT -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
Assets BE
us$ ET 715,824 429,473
HK$ BTT 438,514 132,586
RMB AR 349,412 354,777
EUR BT 58,166 285,409
Liabilities =R
uss$ ET 715,824 429,473
HK$ BT 589,884 583,952
RMB AR 1,391,529 991,910
EUR BX 7T 58,166 285,409
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The Group is primarily exposed to the fluctuation of AEBEEZEEEBUITHB
EUR against HK$, and HK$ and US$ against RMB. T MBTRETHEAR

BREBTE -
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e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD)

31. €I BE#)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER
policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) miZEE (&)
(a)  Currency risk (Continued) (a) E®REpR(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (&)
The following tables detail the Group’s sensitivity to T3R5 AN 5 [ 7 N A

a 5% (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currencies to the extent
that the exposures have not been hedged. 5%
(2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items (including
intercompany balances denominated in foreign
currencies) and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. On
this basis, there will be an increase/decrease in
post-tax profit and equity where the functional
currency of the relevant group entities strengthens

against the foreign currencies by 5%, and vice

FREBEIERT - HESE
EER e LHE
HEEINE EFA R TRE5%
(20165 : 5% ) K B
J& 5% (20164 : 5%)
BHANRNEEEEABRE
AN L B eF R R A K
Bk - AEEERING
ERMEIEEEBIED
BT - HMRESTRE
FEUAINEFHEHRENE
¥IEE (BENIINEEE
ZABABAEKR) TR
HERAREHERE - UK
Rk SN EE FE 2R 5% & &) o
FUWRET - ZHEEER
ER I ER HINETF
B5% @ BB RiEzR
L1 N )

versa.
(Decrease) increase Increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit in equity
HEBFED (Em) REREMORD)
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET THER FET
HK$ ABTT (19,953) 20,483
us$ eV 100,936 23
RMB AR 1,413 43,508
EUR BT 14,240 48
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B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED) 31. @@ T A #)
(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER

policies (Continued) (#&)

Market risk (Continued) miZEE (&)

(a)  Currency risk (Continued) (a) E®REpR(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE DI (&)
All foreign currency forward contracts in note 23 BMAMFE23 2B INE
are to hedge the rise of EUR against HK$ (2016: REIE AT E BT R B
the rise of EUR against HK$ & US$ and the rise of T EF (20164 + BUT R
US$ against HK$). BL&ETEARETL

BILLEFR)

The following tables detail the Group’s sensitivity to TRF AR EE L INE T
a 5% (2016: 5%) strengthening or weakening on BERZE5% (20164 :
the foreign currencies and all other variables were 5% ) M BRE - WK
held constant. As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the FIEHEMEHRFTE -
Group's currency risk related to the above HK$/US$ AR TTHEE T A - K
derivative financial instruments is expected to be SEEA BT ET
minimal. TEemMI AR EE

R g2 AR MK,

2017 2016
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
by 5% leading by 5% leading by 5% leading by 5% leading
toincreasein  to decrease in to increase in to decrease in
post-tax profit  post-tax profit post-tax profit post-tax profit
FHES%EH RES%EH FHES%EH HES%EH
BERBNEM HEARNED EEEIEE I ¥l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FET THET
EUR BT 13,834 13,834 15,506 (15,510)
RMB ARE — = — _

15,506 (15,510)
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD) 31. @M I A #)
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(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER
policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) miZEE (&)
(b) Interest rate risk (b) FIE &R

Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report

The Group’s bank balances carry floating-rate of
interests and have exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. However, the Group
considers that the bank balances are within short
maturity period, and the fluctuation in interest rate
and the cash flow interest rate risk arising from

bank balances are insignificant.

The Group's fair value and cash flow interest risks
mainly relate to fixed and variable rates borrowings
respectively. The Group has not entered into any
interest rate hedging contracts, but considers that
the interest rate of bank borrowings is relatively
stable and so no interest rate swap was used to
hedge the exposure to interest rate risk in current
year. The management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

REERITHERIIES -
HRIBITHISN RS
RITHEBAR RS RER
K o AT - AEER
RRIRITHER IR AR
Bl - BYEIRITAERSIRE
MERBH LB REN X
R RE -

AEBEZRARERRER
ENREREZDRIEE
BMIREEAM - A&
Elli: S RvARR OS2 ped
B4 ERBRITEEN
FMERIBEIBTE - IAER
FEARA AN i B
FMERER - EEEEER
XEBiEEREARRS
EEHE BN R

ﬁ o
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate bank borrowings, to the
extent that they were not hedged by effective
instruments, the analysis is prepared assuming the

T BURE DT RIER
HEHRIFTETAENF
RERET ° BLFBIRTT
fBEE  ERFEENIEMH
BRI EEH - ST TIR
RERBEHRRENEE

amount of liability outstanding at the end of the RE2FEHRKRKENMR
reporting period was outstanding for the whole B o ) = I 05k 450
year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease in AR AHAMEZZEREA

interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

B [ ¥ 1) =< 2 x5 2R AR A
FRELX  REEER
MRS IER BEE BT
ftr e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE B RRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminvuep)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

(©

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

For bank borrowings at variable-rate of
HK$15,077,704,000 (2016: HK$13,412,011,000),
if interest rate had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 after taking into account the
capitalisation of borrowing costs using the
capitalisation rate ranging from 2.34% to 2.94%
(2016: 3.3%) would decrease/increase by
HK$43,857,000 (2016: decrease/increase by
HK$28,856,000).

Commodity price risk
At 31 December 2016, the Group was exposed to
commodity price risk through agricultural

commodity future contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is exposed to the fluctuation of
commodity price risk of agricultural commodity
future contracts at the end of reporting period. If
the commodity price risk of agricultural commodity
future contracts had been 5% higher/lower, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$629,000 in 2016.

(ii)

1. EMIA®)

BREREERNREE

(%)

EE1EAC P

(b)

(c)

T &= = b (&)
BRRE DI (&)
# A& #15,077,704,000
% ot (2016 4
13,412,011,000 38 7T )
ZEBRITEBEEMmMS -
o ¥ & EF T B50&
Eﬁ ’ ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ_ﬁﬁtﬁ*%ﬂ&ﬁ
""""" C REBEE2017
¢12H31 HIEFERNH
B BFE RAE R
AR B 234% £ 2.94%
(20164 : 3.3%):tE 2
BEREEERAE - 158
4/ 1% H143,857,000 %8
Tt (20164 : jFA /H#Ein
28,856,000/ 7T) °

B o (B 15 B B
M2016%F12A318 » &
EEERREEMBES
NEZEmERRERE -

BRE DT
RREBRR - AEBFAR
BEXmRBEAHNZAEM
{Eff RENRS o FRER 22

HEEH 2 HmER
tﬂ/ﬂ%s% P AREH
20164 [E 2 i & & F)
#5800, 5 4 629,0000%8
5T o
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD)
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(ii) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In making such assessments, the Group
considers the value of collateral held and expected future
cash flows from the assets. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial
instruments is limited because the counterparties are

banks with good reputation.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
Accordingly, the Group’s concentration of credit risk is

considered minimal.

31. €I BE#)

(ii)
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BREREERNREE
(%)

ZERR
MR2017F12A31H » A& HE
EEF ST REBITETMEH
BB EERRKE
FEMBARAREINZED
BREMEENEREEE -

AEEREGEERR  AKHE
EEEEZE-HABEER
ER#E FEEHUAREME
22 BRI EAHER
RERERAETTE) - ULON - AR H
EEEERBEHRRENEE
AERZ AW @S5 - ARER
B X W O & BR HE R R S RUE
B - EERFEE  A&H
SERAFEA M EBERZ
EEERHRARAKRRSRE - 5t
- EFZR/AEEZEER
BRE AR -

HRR BT REEFRRY
ZIRT BWRBEERITES
BMITAZEERRER -

AEENEYE ZERBIEA
BEEF  REZETERMIE
@i o Fith  NREBEFREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD) 31. @M I A #)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition to the credit risk on trade debts, the Group is
also exposed to concentration on credit risk on its loan to
a joint venture. Because the Group's involvement in the
management of joint venture, the Group is in a position
to monitor their financial performance and would take
timely actions to safeguard its assets and/or to minimise
its losses. Accordingly, management believes that the
Group's exposure to the credit risk associated with loan

to joint venture is low.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group’'s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
has available unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$9,908,498,000 (2016: HK$11,094,000,000). Details

of bank borrowings are set out in note 26.

BXERAR AR 2017 F£3R]

(%)

EERR(E)
BRTEESEBHNEERR
S ARBERAEEEENR L
FHESETEERAR RAR/ALE
E2EARMENER A%
EHREEAMBRANMLE
WA B R FKITE ARERLE
Ek/SREEE - Bt &
EEREAKREESTAED
XEFSIENEERRBE -

mEE R R
REERDESZRBME © &
SEERRRBEABREAR
AEEZERKES - ARR
HATRENBTEZRER
ReEEYKFE BEEEBESR
RITIEEZBRAERETE
I ©

REBBERBRRITIEERE
ERBEDKIR - RN2017
#£12 8318 K&EHEX
BHRACRTEERELOR
9,908,498,000/8 7L (20164 :
11,094,000,000& 7t ) » R 1T
BEFHBEHNRWE26 -
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD)

162

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group's
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net cash flows on derivative
instruments that settle on a net basis. When the amount
payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected interest rates as
illustrated by the yield curves existing at the end of the
reporting period. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s
derivative financial instruments are prepared based on
the contractual maturities as the management consider
that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of

derivatives.

31. €I BE#)

(ii)
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B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD) 31 I A®)
(i) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER
policies (Continued) ()
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER(E
Liquidity tables MEE 2K
Weighted Repayable Carrying
average  ondemand Total amount at
effective  orless than 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1month  1-3 months to 1year 1-5 years cash flows 2017
20175
ERAE EEREX RTR 12A318
MELHH  HHOMER BAZIE 1256 BREeRBAT ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bk TER B FET TER TER FET
31 December 2017 2017%12R31A
Non-derivative financial 3 fi£ & BEAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BN Z 5 L E b8 2,310,061 1,166,180 722,113 4,198,354 4,198,354
Amounts due torelated  FEFBJE 2 B FUR
companies 14,742 14,742 14,742
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable-rate -%8 5,756,669 278,301 9,586,169 15,621,139 15,077,704

8,081,472 1,166,180 1,000,414 9,586,169 19,834,235 19,290,800
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31.

164

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD) 31 I A®)

(i) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER
policies (Continued) ()
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER(E
Liquidity tables (Continued) THENE DK ()

Weighted Repayable Carrying
average on demand Total amount at
effective or less than 3 months undiscounted 31 December

interest rate 1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flows 2016
2016%
ERFE  ERRER i) 128318
mEFHE P R1ER 123088  3EAZ1E 1256 REMEA ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAL FAL TAT TAT FAL FAL TAT
31 December 2016 2016%12A31A
Non-derivative financial {74 ¢REE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BN Z 5 L E b8 — 1,880,956 636,970 741,329 — 3,259,255 3,259,255
Amounts due torelated  FEFBJE 2 B FUR
companies — 4288 — — — 4288 4,288
Bank borrowings RTEE
- variable-rate -38 233 4,039,909 — 69,996 9,945,643 14,055,548 13,412,011
- fixed-rate -8 373 - 101,582 34,331 - 135913 134,831
5,925,153 738,552 845,656 9,945,643 17,455,004 16,810,385
Derivatives fTETR
- net settlement - FERN
Foreign exchange forward ~ SMERHIA4)
contracts — 1,350 5,731 4,071 — 11,152 11,152
Agricultural commodity  E¥ERHELH
future contracts — — — 115 — 115 115
1,350 5,731 4,186 — 11,267 11,267
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B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED) 31. @@ T A #)
(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BERBEEEOIRBER

policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER(E
Liquidity tables (Continued) THENE DK ()
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause MAEREERERBGERZR
are included in the “repayable on demand or less than 1 TEER M EBASW
month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at AT EZRERSK DM
31 December 2017 and 2016, the aggregate 8 A1 zE8E - R2017F &k
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans 2016 F 12 A31H + Z &R
amounted to HK$5,250,745,000 and HK$4,036,081,000 TERZAFRAZRED
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial B A& 5,250,745,000 & 7T &
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable 4,036,081,000/8 7T - & & &
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to REE2HBMRR - EFH
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that B RITPAKRATEITEBNS
such bank loans will be repaid after the reporting date in o BRAEEAKFER &
accordance with the following scheduled repayment EHE - ZERITEEBRA
dates set out in the loan agreements: REBBHZERBERBHRM

BB ERAREERNAT

Bank borrowings subject to repayment on demand clause B 75 FE SRR B R 2 SR1T 1B
based on scheduled repayments: EiRHBEERE
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months to 1 year cash flows amount
BRFE RIFE
I DSRUEA 123(8A MEAZIE  BEREA BREE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=R TER TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2017 M2017F12A318 2.46 4,451,710 730,661 83,518 5,265,889 5,250,745
As at 31 December 2016 #2016F 124318 1.81 3,499,072 477,825 67,753 4,044,650 4,036,081
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD) 31. €T A#)
(iii) Fair value (iii) D2 RE

Fair value measurements recognised in the R BIRR R BER L AR ER
statement of financial position 2

This note provides information about how the Group AT REAEEBOFNEE T
determines fair values of various financial assets and AemEEREREBEAAE
financial liabilities. ZER

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial rEEBRELEMEERSREA
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each BEREMEHRE QAL EE
reporting period. The following table gives information 2o TRREHBNAEEZES
about how the fair values of these financial assets and MEEREREBEAAENE
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the RLCEGFAFRARMERZ
valuation technique(s) and inputs used). KI5 °

Fair value as at

Financial assets/ 31 December 2017  Fair value Valuation techniques

financial liabilities 7A2017512831H hierarchy and key inputs

EREE SRAE ZRRE A RERH HEFARETERE

Foreign currency forward contracts  Assets — Level 2 Future discounted cash flows
classified as derivative financial HK$4,127,000 24 are estimated based on the
instruments in the consolidated & & — applicable forward foreign
statement of financial position 4,127,000%7T exchange rates

HMNEIR BRI B HNER A BRSO &R AREFTHRBR @ RETVENE
DEATESRIA RINEEHEERE
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B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD) 31. @M I A #)

(iii) Fair value (Continued) (iii) AREE)

R BIRRKRER 2 A A ER

B(#&)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

Fair value as at

Financial assets/ 31 December 2016 Fair value Valuation techniques
financial liabilities 7201612 H31H hierarchy and key inputs

TRMEE RAE ZRRME RREMRR  FHEIAREEKRE

Foreign currency forward Assets — Level 2 Future discounted cash flows
contracts classified as derivative ~ HK$231,000 28 are estimated based on the
financial instruments in the Liabilities — applicable forward foreign
consolidated statement of HK$11,152,000 exchange rates
financial position BE— RIS ME JIENE

SNEREIE HRNER A ITESIRNE 231,000 7T NS R EAEE A E
SERTESHMIEA BE-

11,152,000 7T

Agricultural commodity future Liabilities — Level 1 Quoted bid commodity
contracts classified as derivative ~ HK$115,000 FE1R future prices on the Dalian
financial instruments in the aE- Commodity Exchange
consolidated statement of 115,000/ 7T RREFHRR ZFIRIEMRE

financial position 2 mEEERE

BEAMPEEONGRA MR
MEDERTESRMTA

EERRREAMBHRRER
BERSBRABREBHFEKAZ
WeERmMERSEARE-

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

BGERER AT 2017 £ 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRE B AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED) 31. M I AE)

(iv) Financial assets and financial liabilities (iv) 588 THTHEFREE
subject to offsetting, enforceable master ZHRELUHRET 228/
netting agreements and similar EERERAE
agreements
The disclosures set out in the tables below include THRFEBENAINITEFE
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to HEZHIEUBREE N 2&
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar MEEREBEE WK
agreement that covers similar financial instruments, ZEUERMIA  THEES
irrespective of whether they are offset in the Group's ERAEREGEVBARRKRY
consolidated statement of financial position. 8 °
Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master FHIE TRTAFEAER
netting arrangements and similar agreements ERBEUBEET ZeMEE
As at 31 December 2017 ®20175612H31H8

Grossamount  Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
set off in the inthe  Related amounts not set off
consolidated  consolidated  in the consolidated statement
statementof  statement of of financial position
finandial finandial TERGFEHERRR
Gross amounts position position HEvERLE
of recognised i) iy Cash collateral
financial assets BEMRE BERRE Financial received Net

BRISH HEERR 2RZ  instruments BhEE amount

Description Bz BEAE SHAEME SREETE fiE4MIA i it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn

Bank balances RATH 407 - 407 — — 407

Margin deposits RESER

Derivative financial assets #7446 BEE
- Foreign currency —IEEHAY
forward contracts
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED) 31. @@ T A #)

(iv) Financial assets and financial liabilities (iv) S8 IHTEFELEE
subject to offsetting, enforceable master ZHRELHRET 2/
netting agreements and similar EERERAEE
agreements (Continued)

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master Y8 ATITARFRAEE
netting arrangements and similar agreements RELHZRE T 2 emEE
As at 31 December 2016 720165128318
Net amounts
Gross amount of financial
of recognised assets
financial liabilities presented
set off in the inthe  Related amounts not set off
consolidated ~ consolidated  in the consolidated statement
statementof  statement of of financial position
Gross amounts financial financial TERNTARBRAR
of recognised position position HEZEBLE
financial WA iy Cash collateral
assets  BEBMAR HBRRE Financial received Net
BEASH HE/CED 257 instruments BhBE amount
Description Bz EERE SRHAELE SREEFE (TE2mIA il it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Bank balances FITER 11,983 - 11,983 - - 11,983
Margin deposits RESET 1,450 - 1,450 (115) - 1,335

Derivative financial assets #T4£4EEE
- Foreign currency —“EEHAY
forward contracts 231 - 231 — — 231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

31. €I BE#)
(iv) F8#E  THTRFEEE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD)

(iv) Financial assets and financial liabilities

subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting agreements and similar
agreements (Continued)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting arrangements and similar agreements

As at 31 December 2016

ZHREMUBRET 228
EEREREE#E

¥ AIRTTRFREERER
BERBOmEET 2 RAE

M2016512H831H

Net amounts
Gross amount of financial
of recognised ligbilities
financial assets presented
set off in the inthe  Related amounts not set off
consolidated consolidated i the consolidated statement
statement o statement of of financial position
(Gross amounts financial financial VERNGARBRRE
of recognised position position HHE B
financial iAo i Cash collateral
liabilities BERRE B Financial received Net
BEREE HHE/EER 2R7  instruments B2 amount
Description Bz BERE SREAELE SRBRETE (TE2RIA il it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TETL TETL TERT TEn TR TETL
Derivative financial TEEBAE
liabilities
—Foreign currency ~HEEBAY
forward contracts 11,152 — 11,152 - - 11,152
- Agricuttural commodity — £ &
future contracts HEAN 115 — 115 — (115) —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

32. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings, which fall due as follows:

32. EEMEY

SEEREBA

RmERR - NEBERET A HH
ML REFREBEON A RAE
W& ERSOT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TR

Within one year —FRA
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERAFA
Over five years iR F

12,758 9,123
8,545 7,455
3,907 —

25,210 16,578

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for staff quarters and certain of its office
properties. For staff quarters and office properties, leases
are negotiated for terms ranged from 1 year to 10 years
with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

During the year ended 31 December 2017, rental income
in respect of industrial properties, office spaces, certain
shops and staff quarters and plant and machinery in the
PRC was HK$26,359,000 (2016: HK$7,505,000), net of

negligible outgoings. Leases are within one to ten years.

KEHeEASEREIRE RE
ETHAEYVXEENNES - BT
BERBAEYELERHBMH—
FE+F - HABESTE o

SEER/EHEA

REZE2017F12A31HIEFE -
BTN IEYE  BAE &
TRHEMBIRE S L& B &%
MESWA (BB TEE 2R
) /426,359,000 7T (2016 4F
7,505,000/ 0) - A ABH—=+
FR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

32. OPERATING LEASES (continueD) 32. RKEMY#)
The Group as lessor (Continued) SEEABBEAE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had EAREHR  AEBEHBEPLEF
contracted with tenants for the following future RIAAMARRERER

minimum lease payments:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FH&ET

Within one year —F R 40,209 17,119
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERFER 166,808 87,449
After five years BRARAF 192,534 118,848

399,551 223,416
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EAREIRE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Capital expenditures contracted for but 5t 2 5T411B R R 4R A BT #RK
not provided in the consolidated HREEETIESE
financial statements in respect of MERFRY :
acquisition of:
- property, plant and equipment o E RN 1,704,364 2,164,178
—land use rights — T fE A 32,612 137,858

1,736,976 2,302,036
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
=

BB AR MY RE (AR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

34. RYBMEETHEENAE

TRAMANEAEEHBRE TS E
EMEEREY BERASKIFRS
2y RETHELNABELER
EREIRAKASRERIBER
SEZGEERERERARE LD
B RERE -

activities.

Bank Dividend
borrowings payable Total
SRITEE Bt R E &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT THET
13,546,842 — 13,546,842

At 1 January 2017 MR2017F1A18

Financing cash flows MERSME 1,528,226 (1,264,659) 263,567
Foreign exchange translation 4N & #a 2,636 — 2,636
Declaration of dividend TR E = 1,264,659 1,264,659

At 31 December 2017 M2017%F12831H

15,077,704

15,077,704

35. kBERSH

HE2017F12A318B L FE
FEBBEDME BELRE
Z 61,145,000 % 7T ( 2016 F
210,175,000 7T ) Jh {E B 1T F E &Y
BT o8& -

35. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's
acquisition of property, plant and equipment was settled
through transfer of deposits paid in the prior years to the
extent of HK$61,145,000 (2016: HK$210,175,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

36. INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. RNATB IR EF
THE COMPANY

A summarised statement of financial position of the RARP2017F K20165F12 A31
Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as follows: Bz MBRRR BT -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A ERE 637,977 637,977
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN 9,972,863 9,966,720
Bank balances HITHE R 204 4,593
9,973,067 9,971,313
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables FEAS E At BR FR 4,821 6,737
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT T B A R FUA 7,800,600 5,844,044
Bank borrowings RITEE — 19,193
7,805,421 5,869,974
Net current assets MEBEFE 2,167,646 4,101,339
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRTEARE 2,805,623 4,739,316
Non-current liability kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 379,166

2,805,623 4,360,150

174 Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited 2017 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

36. INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (conTivuED)

36. KRB EMRRER (&)

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 Fis
Share capital % A% 112,635 113,642
Reserves HE 2,692,988 4,246,508
Total equity A8 FE 2,805,623 4,360,150
note: B 5
(i) Movements in reserves (i) HEEE
Share
Share Contributed repurchase Retained Total
premium surplus reserve profits reserve
&7 55 (8 BEHRH ROBLHEE BT B F R E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET F&T FAT
At 1 January 2016 H20165F1 718 3,565,525 634,977 — 228,913 4,429,415
Shares repurchased and A% {7 B& 0] K 3+ 8
cancelled (156,342) — — — (156,342)
Shares repurchased and A& {7 BE[E1{E (4 K 5T 84
yet to be cancelled — — (42,122) — (42,122)
Profit for the year FEAHF — — — 949,733 949,733
Dividends recognised as  FER BN IR 2 % 5.
distributions — — — (934,176) (934,176)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 H31H 3,409,183 634,977 (42,122) 244,470 4,246,508
Shares repurchased and A&7 B8 @ I 3585
cancelled (275,332) — 42,122 — (233,210)
Profit for the year FERBF — — — (55,651) (55,651)
Dividends recognised ERADIKZRS
as distributions (1,264,659) — — — (1,264,659)
At 31 December 2017 H2017F 128318 1,869,192 634,977 — 188,819 2,692,988

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the aggregate net tangible assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation in September 2003 and
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition.

BOZBRAEEZZE -

BXERAR AR 2017 F£3R]

ARABIZEHRABTIANAREH2003
FORZEBESMAMBRBEIHBARZ
BRBEFEBEAARAGZKER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)

B3 R AR MY R (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

37. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY 37. HEAKRBEEALKE
DISCLOSURES
During the year, the Group had significant transactions FA-AKEEEBAL(ETAL
with related parties, certain of which are also deemed MERRE TR R AR 1E AR E
to be connected parties pursuant to the Listing Rules. ADVETERRS - FREZEA
Significant transactions with these parties during the year THEITHEARZOT :
are as follows:
(i) Related and connected party transactions (i) HERBEALRS
2017 2016
Name of party Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
HEALER XHHE THET TET
LMIML (as defined in note 22) Finished goods sold by the Group
BXEX(EZAME22) EEHERK R 133,560 78,989
Income from supply of steam and
electricity
REERREN 2B 2,770
Raw materials purchased
by the Group
SERERN 1,914
Lee & Man Paper Products Company Limited  Licence fee expenses incurred
(note i) by the Group
BYSmARRR (M) EEFAEEH 1,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

37. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

DISCLOSURES (conminuep)

(i)

37. HERBEALHEE &)

Related and connected party transactions (i) WHEREEALTRS(E)

(Continued)

Name of party
BEALER

2017
Nature of transactions HK$’000
RoME THERT

Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited
(note ii)

TEHE X TAR A (FI)

Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical Limited
(note ii)

TAEXCTARA B ()

Income from supply of steam
and electricity
REZERREN 2B
Raw materials purchased by the Group
SEEERA
Rental income of office spaces

BMAEHEES WA

Steam and electricity fee paid by

the Group
EEENARLRBEEREE
Rental fee paid by the Group
EEENESE
Raw materials purchased by the Group

SERERM

2016

HK$'000

TRL

65,165

15,806

1,774

34,382

1,367
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

37. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY 37. HEREEEANLHE (#)
DISCLOSURES (conminuep)
(i) Related and connected party transactions () HEREEALRS(E)
(Continued)
notes: Mt
(i) The Company is indirectly wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Li (i) ERARFEESEZRBEIT
King Wai Ross, who is also a daughter of Mr. Lee Wan Keung RAEDBREIERBRREZERSL
Patrick, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. ErHRRERERSE - FER
Li King Wai Ross is a director of the Company. FERARNRES -
(ii) The Company is beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Lee (i) ZRRR/RR R REERRERE
Wan Keung Patrick, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the B RaAER R -
Company.
(i) Related and connected party balances (i) MHEAKEEALAER
Details of the Group's outstanding balances with AEEERBEATREITRE
related parties who are also the connected parties BATZREEZBRFBIHR
are set out in the consolidated statement of financial iR e MBI R KA EE22

position and note 22.

(iii) Compensation of key management (iii) EZEEEK S
personnel
The remunerations of the directors and other EERHEMEBREREKRER
members of key management during the year were FARZMERT
as follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Short-term benefits 2 HA1E A 41,117 40,855
Post-employment benefits RIKAET 18 36

41,135 40,891
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRMWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z20174€12H31H 1L F/Z

38. AR B XEEMMB LTS
38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY
RRAREZMBRAR2017F K&
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 201612 A31H®EBW T -

December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Nominal value of

Place of incorporation/ issued and fully paid
establishment/registration share capital/
and operations registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary ERAEL/RY/ BRTRERRAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
HEARER BRREELY ERER ERAMEERELA ITER
Directly Indirectly
=t 3
2016
Able Advance International Limited British Virgin Islands (note ) Ordinary shares - US$4 - Investment holding
EERTES (W) LRk-4x1 REAR
Lee & Man Industries Company Limited  British Virgin Islands (note i) Ordinary share - US$1 100% Investment holding
EEERES(MH) LER-1%T AR
Vantage Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - HK$2 100% Investment holding
HMEBRAR B LRk-2%81 REAR
Lee Kwok (Macao Commercial Offshore) ~ Macau MOP100,000 100% Procurement of raw
Trading Limited 2 12F9%100,0007C materials
g (2FRREERE) 298RAF RERR
R GEREAR LA The PRC (note i) Registered capital - 100% Manufacturing and
(Dongguan Lee & Man Paper LEIRD) US$156,480,000 trading of paper
Factory Co. Ltd) A~ 156,480,000% 7 RELERES
BRECESARAR The PRC (note i) Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Guangdong Lee & Man Paper LEIRD) US$680,000,000 trading of paper
Manufacturing Limited) A% -680,000,000% 7 RELERES
TR CEARAR The PRC (note i) Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(liangsu Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing & (f3ii) 15$393,000,000 trading of paper
Company Limited) A7 -393,000,000% 7 RELERES
EFEERARAA The PRC (note i Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Chonging Lee & Man Paper (i) 15$322,430,000 trading of paper
Manufacturing Limited) AR -322,430,000% 7 RELERES
EFENHIRARAA The PRC (note i) Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Chongging Lee & Man Pulp P (i) US$172,830,000 trading of pulp
Manufacturing Limited) R EE~172,830,000%7 HREERES
IHERGER AR The PRC (note if Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(liangyi Lee & Man Paper LEIRD) US$100,000,000 trading of paper
Manufacturing Limited) A ~100,000,000%7 RELERES
ERENELERMLEARAT The PRC (note i Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Chongging Lee & Man Tissue LEIRD) 15§425,000,000 trading of tissue
Manufacturing Limited) &R -425,000,000% T products
BESEREERESD
Vietnam Lee & Man Paper Vietnam Registered capital - 100% Manufacturing and
Manufacturing Limited il US$300,000,000 trading of paper
FHE A -300,000,000% T RALERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # Z2017F12H31HIFFE

38. ARBEEMBRAFE &)
38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (conTinuED) s

notes: (i) RENREERBEE -
(i) These companies operate in Hong Kong.
(i) RERRARETBEKILIZIERED
(ii) These companies are foreign investment enterprises established in the E
PRC.

FRINLBEERRIBERELRE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in HEYRERBGEHARDTNEB
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or NE - BERA JEHEMHEAD
assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other T E e F AN T BRIE -

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
RE RS E R TR - &0 B2
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at T E AR BN EIRES -
the end of the year, or at any time during the year.
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